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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 12" Annual General Meeting (“AGM") of the Members of
NIIT Institute of Finance Banking and Insurance Training Limited will be held on Wednesday,
11" day of July 2018 at 9.20 A.M. at its registered office at 8, Balaji Estate, First Floor, Guru
Ravi Das Marg, Kalkaji, New Delhi -110019, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2018, together with the Reports of the Auditors and the
Directors thereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Vijay K Thadani (DIN:00042527), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. P Rajendran (DIN:00042531), who retires by
rotation and being aligible, offers himself for re-appointment,

SPECIAL BUSINESS

Appointment of Mr. Manish Srivastava, as Manager of the Company

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s) following
resolution as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 196, 197, 198, 201 and 203 read
with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Appointment &
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any amendment and/or re-enactment
thereof), and such other approval(s)/permissions/ sanctions of the Statutory
Authorities, as may be necessary, consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to
appaint Mr. Manish Srivastava as Manager of the Company for a term of three
years w.e.f. June 1, 2018 on the terms and remuneration as set out below:

Basic Salary : | Rs. 80,000 p.m.
(in the band of Rs. 80,000 p.m. to Rs.
160,000 p.m.)
|
HRA : | Rs. 40000 p.m. (50 % of the Basic Salary)
Fixed Allowances & Perguisites : Rs. 14,66,713 p.a.
{Perquisites here means car lease, {in the band of Rs, 14,00,000 p.a. to
fuel expenses, driver salary, mobile Rs.28,00,000 p.a.)
expenses, Medical expenses, meal
vouchers & LTA and Mediclaim
| Insurance Premium or any other as ]

NIIT INSTITUTE OF FINANCE BANKING AND INSURANCE TRAINING LIMITED

Regd. Office: 8, Balaji Estate, First Floor, Guru Ravi Das Marg, Kalkaji, New Delhi-110018
CIN : UBDS03DL2006PLC149721
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per policy of the Company)

Variable Cpmpensa-tiun 3 Rs. 953,300 p.a.

{in the band of Rs, 9,00,000 p.a. to
Rs. 18,00,000 p.a.)

{Based on assessment of performance
during the financial year).

Other Benefits:

a. Contribution to Provident Fund not exceeding 12% of the Basic Salary,
Superannuation Fund not exceeding 13% of Basic Salary or Rs.150,000 or
such amount as stipulated by Government from time to time;

b. Gratuity payable and encashment of ieave at the end of the tenure, to the
extent the same are not taxable under the Income Tax Act; and

c. Reimbursement of expenses incurred by him in connection with the
business of the Company as per the palicies of the Company.

{The Actual benefits extended to the Manager would be as per existing Rules of the
Company, communicated to him and as may be amended from time to time.)

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Schedule V of the
Companies Act 2013 (as amended/re-enacted/modified from time to time) and
subject to such approval as may be necessary, aforesaid remuneration as minimum
remuneration be paid by the Company to Mr. Manish Srivastava, Manager, for the
financial year in which there is no profit or absence of profits, during the period of
three years commencing from June 1, 2018."

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorized to
increase, vary or amend the remuneration (within the allocate grades) including
salary, allowances, perquisites and benefits, minimum remuneration and other
terms of his appointment, from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary.”

By the Order of the Board
For NIIT Institute of Finance Banking and
Insurance Training Limited

Arpita B. Malhotra
Dated : May 11, 2018 Company Secretary

Place : Gurugram Membership No. F8670
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Notes:
1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO

APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

PROXY FORM DULY FILLED IN AND COMPLETED IN ALL RESPECT IN ORDER TO BE
EFFECTIVE MUST BE LODGED WITH THE COMPANY AT ITS REGISTERED OFFICE NOT
LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE TIME FIXED FOR THE MEETING.

2. Register of Directors’ Shareholding shall be open for inspection at the Registered Office
of the Company during normal business hours except Saturday’s and Sunday's upto and
including the date of AGM,

3. Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of
special business is appended hereto and forms an integral part of this Notice.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
[Pursuant to the provisions of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013]

Item No. 4

in view of resignation of Ms. Porkodi Palani as Manager of the Company effective May 31,
2018, the Company is required to have either Managing Director or Chief Executive Offer or
Manager or Whole-time Director in terms of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 197, 198, 203 read with Schedule V of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules
2014, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on May 11, 2018, on the recommendations
of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and subject to the approval of sharehalders of
the Company, has appointed Mr. Manish Srivastava as the Manager of the Company for a
period of three years w.e.f. June 1, 2018.

Your Directors considered that appointment of Mr. Manish Srivastava as Manager will be in
the overall interest of the Company.

The other Information as required under Section Il of Part Il of Schedule V of the Companies
fct, 2013 is given below:

|. GENERAL INFORMATION

1 | Nature of Industry The Company is in service industry for imparting training in

the field of Finance, Banking and Insurance Sector

2 | Date or expected date
of commencement of

Mot Applicabie
(The Company is an existing company)

commercial
Production
3 |In case of new | NotApplicable B
companies, expected
date of
commencement of
activities as per
project approved by
financial institutions
appearing in  the
prospectus
Financial performance | | Particulars (In Rs. Million)
based on given Financial year
indicators 2017-18 | 2016-17 | 2015-16
| Total 152.49 154.97 221.36
| Revenue
. Profit After 2213 42.95 bb.64
Tax B
Foreign  investments | NIL

or Collaborators; if any

1. INFORMATION ABOUT MANAGER
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Mr. Manish Srivastava

1.

Backgr-nund
details

Mr. Manish Srivastava, aged 48 years, has done B.A. éecnnomics]
from L.D. Arts College, Ahmedabad. He has over 24 years of
experience in the areas of mainly B2C, also B28 & B2G in Training,
Sales & Marketing, Business Development, Client Servicing and
People Management.

Past
remuneration

| 201718 Rs. 35,12,055

2016-17 Rs. 34,92,193
2015-16 Rs. 27,74,487

Recognition or
Awards

il

Job profile and
his suitability

Mr. Manish Srivastava is a National Head-Source-Train-Hire. He
provides strategic direction that optimizes training resources and
capabilities across the Training Department. He is proactive in
assessing the training and development needs and effectively
aligning the programs with business objectives. He is a strategist
cum implementer with recognized proficiency in spearheading
aperations/ business with an aim to accomplish desired plans and
targeted goals successfully. He demonstrated prowess in heading
diversifications, thus increasing business progressively by
undertaking organisational restructuring, maximizing business-
profits and generating significant cost savings. He has competency
in marketing plan execution, product promotion and
implementation of business strategies to accomplish the decided
targets in retail, institutional & govt channels. Also business
partner management.

5.

Remuneration
proposed

in case of inadequacy of profits or no profits in any financial year,
the Company intends to pay remuneration within double the limit
of yearly remuneration as permissible through a special resolution
as prescribed under Section Il of Part It of Schedule V of the
Companies Act, 2013 (as amended/modified from time to time, for
the time being in force) and hence it is proposed to obtain
approval of members by passing of Special Resolution.

6. Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the Company, profile
of the position and person (in case of expatriates the relevant details would be w.r.t. the

country of his origin)

The remuneration payable to Mr. Manish Srivastava has been benchmarked with the
remuneration being drawn by similar positions in IT industry and has been considered by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company at its Meeting held on May 11,
2018,

7. Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company or relationship with
managerial personnel, if any
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Mr. Manish Srivastava has no pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company
except to the extent of his remuneration in the Company.

Iil. OTHER INFORMATION

1. Reasons of loss or inadequate profits:

The company has two major revenue streams - Retail and Corporate. During the year
revenue was impacted due to headwinds in the Banking sector, resulting in reduction in
training spend. Margins of the company in the financial year were impacted due to
significantly lower revenue from retail segment. Revenue from retail segment being royalty
revenue (IP led revenuej has negligible costs and hence high margins.

2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement:

The company remains committed to generating superior returns for its stakeholders. While
there were headwinds, which impacted business, strong steps have been taken to ensure
positive growth as well as improved operating margins. The company is investing in new
products such as service excellence and product for insurance & NBFCs. In the corporate
segment, in addition to strengthening of Sales team, the company has introduced TPaas
(Talent Pipeline as a Service} which encompasses all aspects involved in on-boarding new
talent, including talent acquisition, talent orientation, on-boarding & integration.

3. Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms:

The company expects to improve revenue growth and profitability over the next few years.
We expect revenue from retail segment to grow in the coming year and we will gain huge
traction in the new products such as service excellence and product for insurance & NBFCs.
With the business environment getting increasingly competitive, companies are focusing on
their core competencies and outsourcing other operations. Continuous availability of skilled
talent, matching the speed and scale of business expansion, is a constant challenge for
companies across sectors. To address this opportunity, Company has introduced TPaasS -
Talent Pipeiine as a Service, which encompasses all aspects involved in on-boarding new
talent, including talent acquisition, talent orientation, on-boarding & integration

IV. DISCLOSURES

Disclosures as required, are provided in the Board's Report of the Company for the year
2017-18.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the resolution set out at item No. 4. The
Board recommends the resolutions for your approval.

By the Order of the Board
For NIIT institute of Finance Banking and Insurance
Training Limited

4
Cagad -
Dated : May 11, 2018 Company Secretary
Place : Gurugram Membership No. - F 3670
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BOARD'S REPORT

To
The Members,

Your Directors take pleasm_e- in presenting the 12" Annual Report of your Company along
with the Audited Finanicial Statement for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2018.

Financial Highlights

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) from April 1, 2017 with a
transition date of April 1, 2016. The financial statements has been prepared in accordance
with Ind AS as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read with rule 3 of
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended.

During the year under review, your Company has recorded total income of fis. 163.40
million and a profit after tax of Rs. 22,13 million. The summarized financial results are as
under ;

Amounts in Rs. Million)
| Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31" March, 2018 31" March, 2017
Revenue from Operations 152.49 154,97
Other Income 10.91 11 32
| Total Income . 163.40 166.09 |
Profit before tax 30.13 4983
Tax Expense 8.00 6.88 |
Net Profit | ama 42.95 |

Dividend and Transfer to Reserves

The Directors have not recommended any dividend for the year under review, considering
the funds requirements of the Company for its operations. Your Company has not
transferred any sum to the general reserve.

State of the Company's Affairs

Indian Banking Sector has witnessed major turmoil over the last few years due to Non-
Performing Assets provisioning, thereafter demonetization and now finally with
recapitalization of banks through capital infusion by Government of india.

The Government of India in October 2017 announced and detailed the nature of the
recapitalization plan of 2.11 Lakh crore for Public Sector Banks (PSBs). Around 20 PSBs were
received recapitalized benefit from Government infusing capital to improve capital adequacy
norms and functioning of these PSBs. The capital will be used by the Public Sector Banks
mostly to tide over provisioning and revive credit growth.

The BFSI sector has been shifting gears from a technology adoption standpoint and is
witnessing an increasing advent of robotic process automation [robotic process
automation/chathots) to increase efficiency and productivity in the day-to-day processes

While hiring for operational roles have reduced in Private Banks, it remained active at the
entry level sales roles in Private Banks in BFS| sector through the vyear. The Insurance
segment did show a positive movement and traction.
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Your Company used this opportunity in hiring to expand and strengthen your program
portfolio, including career programs in Sales, Insurance and Financial services, Your company
also increased the number of industry customers and partners, thus achieved greater
diversification of its revenues. Government also issued new bank, small & payment bank
licenses and the company has engaged with 5 of these for rendering training services,

During the financial year under review, 4490 individual students enrolled for the various
programs offered by the Company. The Company also placed more than 4463 students
during the year

Till date, your company has trained and placed over 40000 students. It has also trained over
2,00,000 BFSI professionals in the last 12 years

Further, your Company also trained over 17800 new recruits and in-service professionals
from BFS| industry during the year under review, on new skills through Corporate Training
programs from organizations such as ICICI Bank, IDBI Bank, United Bank of India, Scope
International, Bank of Baroda, Corporation Bank, KVB, CUB, Yes Bank, Kotak bank, Federal
Bank, Catholic Syrian Bank and Bank of Maharashtra

Future Outlook

The Indian economy is expected to grow at 7.4 per cent in the current fiscal and accelerate
further to 7.8 per cent as it recovers from the impact of demonetization and G5T roll out.

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI} has released the Vision 2018 document, aimed at
encouraging greater use of electronic payments by all sections of society by bringing down
paper-based transactions, increasing the usage of digital channels, and boosting the
customer base for mobile banking.

The Indian economy is on the brink of a major transformation, with several policy initiatives

set to be implemented shortly. Positive business sentiments, improved consumer confidence
and more controlled inflation are likely to prop-up the country’s economic growth.

Also, the advancements in technology have brought the mobile and internet banking
services to the fore. The banking sector is laying greater emphasis on providing improved
services to their clients and also upgrading their technology infrastructure, in order to
enhance the customer’'s overall experience as well as give banks a competitive edge.

According to the FICCI- Nasscom and EY - Future of lobs - report, by 2022, 20-25 per cent of
existing jobs in banking, financial services and insurance (BFS!) sector will face existential
threat, while 15-20 per cent of workforce in the sector would be deployed in new jobs that
do not exist today. As per the report, some of the threatened jobs in the BFSI sector are data
entry operator, data verification personnel, teller, cashier and underwriter. On the other
hand, new job roles in BFSI sector will include sales, cyber security specialist, credit analyst,
robot programmer, block chain architect and process modeler expert. Your company plans
to help the banks in the digital transformation by coming out with the relevant product, a
pilot for which was aiready conducted.

Your Company now has over twelve years of relevant domain training experience and has a
good track record of student placement and for training industry professionals. The
Company has taken several steps for business transformation including steps for cost
conservation and de-risking of revenues by diversifying the customer and partner base. The
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Company is venturing into new business areas like managed services, long term PO program,
Service excellence program, Source-Train-Hire model thus creating annuity business and
strategic partnerships. The Company plans to further enhance its product offerings by
including technology platforms & solutions in line with the digital transfarmation initiatives
of the banking industry and to increase business development efforts for reaching out to
customers. Despite entry of competitors and cost pressures, the Company is confident of
rebuilding its growth momentum.

Directors
In accordance with the provisions of the Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act"),
Mr. Vijay K Thadani and Mr, P Rajendran, Directors shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming
AGM and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment as Directors of the
Company.

During the year under review, Mr. Rahul K Patwardhan resigned from the directorship of the
Company with effect from the close of business hours on July 12, 2017 and Mr. Shyam Lal
Bansal resigned from the directorship of the Company with effect from the close of business
hours on February 21, 2018. Mr. Sapnesh Kumar Lalla was appointed as an Additional
Director of the Company by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 10, 2017 and
approved by the Shareholders at the AGM held on July 11, 2017,

All Independent Directors of the Company have given confirmation that they meet the
criteria of independence as provided in the Section 149{6}) of the Act.

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

As-on the date of this report, following are KMPs of the Company:
* Ms. Porkodi Palani, Manager
*  Mr. Pankaj Mamtani, Chief Financial Officer
« Ms. Arpita B Malhotra, Company Secretary

Ms. Porkedi Palani has resighed as Manger of the Company at the Board Meeting held on
May 11, 2018, w.ef May 31, 2018 The Board has appointed Mr. Manish Srivastava as
Manager of the Company w.ef. June 1, 2018, as recommended by Nomination &
Remuneration Committee.

Meetings of the Board

The Board of Directors met Five (5) times in the financial year 2017-2018, i.e. on May 10,
2017, July 12, 2017, October 11, 2017, January 11, 2018 and March 23, 2018, The
intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Act.

Audit Committee

In line with the statutory provisions of the Act and as a measure of good Corporate
Governance with a view to provide assistance to the Board in fulfilling its oversight
responsibilities, an Audit Committee of the Directors was constituted. More than two-third of
the members of the Committee are Independent Directors and every Member has rich
experience in the financial sector. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the
Committee. Statutory Auditors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company also
attend the meeatings by invitation. The recommendations of the Audit Committee are placed
before the Board for its consideration and approval,

During the year under review, Mr. S.L. Bansal, an Independent Director ceased to be
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member of the Audit Committee, pursuant to his resignation as Director. Currently, the
Audit Committee comprises following members: .

* Mr. Saurabh Singh - Chairman
e Nr. Anand Sudarshan
* Mr. Narayanan Raja

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company is constituted to identify
persons who are gualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior
management and to formulate the criteria for determining gualification, positive attributes
and independence of a director and recommend to the board a policy, relating to the
remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees and to carry
out evaluation of other director's performance. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Company is also entrusted to frame policies and system for employee
stock option plans and to formulate and administer the company’s Employee stock option
plans from time to time. The remuneration policy of the Company is aimed to reward
performance, based on review of achievements on a regular basis.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises following members:
Mr. Saurabh Singh - Chairman
Mr. P-Rajendran
s Mr. Anand Sudarshan
* Mr. Narayanan Raja

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the Company is aimed at rewarding perfarmance, based on
review of achievements on a regular basis. The objective and broad framework of the
Remuneration Policy is to consider and determine the remuneration, based on the
fundamental principles of payment for performance, for potential, and for growth. The
Remuneration Policy reflects on certain guiding principles of the Company such as aligning
remuneration with the longer term interests of the Company and its shareholders,
promoting a culture of meritocracy and creating a linkage to corporate and individual
performance, and emphasizing on line expertise and market competitiveness so as to attract
the best talent.

Meeting of Independent Director
During the year under review, meeting of the Independent Directors was held on March 23,
2018 in accordance to the provisions of Section 149 of the Act and rules thereto.

Corporate Social Responsibility
In line with the Section 135 of the Act and rules thereto, the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee comprises Mr, Anand Sudarshan, Mr. P Rajendran, Mr. Sapnesh Kumar Lalla and
Mr. Kumar Ashish as members.

The said Committee has been entrusted with the responsibility of formulating and
monitoring the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company, which includes inter-
alia activities to be undertaken by the Company, monitoring the implementation of the
framework of the policy and recommending the amount to be spent on TSR activities.
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During the period, the Company has undertaken activities as per CSR Policy of the Company
and recommended by CSR Committee. A Report on CSR Activities is enclosed herewith as
"Annexure A", forming part of this report.

Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and other applicable provisions of the Act (as
amended from time to time), M/s 5 R Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountant, FRN
101049W/E300004 ("S R Batliboi”), were appointed by the members of the Company as
Statutory Auditors of the Company from the conclusion of 11™ AGM until the conclusion of
16™ AGM, subject to ratification at each AGM of the Company. Pursuant to an amendment
in Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, ratification of such appointment of Statutory
Auditors is no more required at each Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, the same is not
been taken up at this Annual General Meeting for shareholders approval.

Auditors’ Report
The Report of the Auditors on the Annual Financial Statement of your Company for the
Financial Year 2017-18 forms part of the Annual Accounts and the same is self-explanatory.

Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy

The Company has adeguate system of internal control for planning, review, revenue
recognition, expenses authorization, capital expenditure approval, risk management,
investments etc. The Company is following all the applicable Accounting Standards for
properly maintaining the books of accounts and reporting financial statement.

Deposit
Your Company has not accepted any fixed deposit from public,

Share Capital
There is no change in the share capital of the Company during the period under review.

Particulars of loans, guarantee or investment
Details of Loan, guarantees or Investments covered under the provisions of section 186 of
the Act, are given in the notes to the Financial Statement.

Related Party Transaction

All related party transactions entered into by the Company during the financial year were in
the ordinary course of business and on an arm's length basis. There is no materially
significant related party transaction made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have a potential canflict with
the interest of the Company at large.

All Related Party Transactions were approved by the Audit Committee and were also
approved by the Board of Directors as a good Corporate Governance. The disclosure of
related party transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h) read with Section 188 of the
Act, in Form ADC 2 is annexed here with as Annexure B,

Information relating to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Research and
Development, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo and other information forming part of
the Directors' Report in terms of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules made thereunder
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a) Conservation of energy

Although the operations of the Company are not energy intensive, the management
has been highly conscious of criticality of conservation of energy at all the
operational levels and efforts are made in this direction on a continuous basis,
Adequate measures have been taken to reduce energy consumption whenever
possible by using energy efficient equipment. The requirement of disclosure of
particulars with respect to conservation of energy as prescribed in Section 134(2)(m)
of the Act read with rule 8 of the Companies (Account) Rules, 2014, are not
applicable to the Company and hence are not provided.

b} Technology absorption
The Company realizes that in order to stay competitive and avoid obsolescence, it
would have to invest in new technology across multiple product lines and services
offered by it. Hence, the Company conscientiously making every effort to develop
methods for adapting and effectively deploying new technologies.

c) Research and Development
The Company believes that technological obsolescence is a reality. Only progressive
research and development will help us to measure up to future challenges and
opportunities. During the year, no amount has been incurred on the Research &
Development.

d) Foreign exchange earnings and outgo
(i) Activities relating to exports, initiatives taken to increase exports,
development of new export markets for products and services and export
plans.

The Company has its presence in India only and offers its services in India.
The Company does not have any export activities, However, the Company
has plans to start its operation abroad either of its own or through affiliates
companies.

{ii) Expenditure and Earnings in Foreign Currency
During the financial year under review, your Company has no foreign
exchange earnings or outgo (Previous Year — Nil).

Extract of Annual Return
The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Beturn in form MGT-2 in term of
Section 92(3) of the Act is annexed herewith as “Annexure C"' and form part of this Report.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement
As required under Section 134(3)(c) of the Act, the Directars of the Company hereby state
and confirm:

s that in preparation of Annual Accounts for the financial year, the applicable Accounting
Standards have been followed along with the proper explanations relating to material
departures;

» that they have selected such accounting policies described in the notes to accounts
which have been consistently applied except where otherwise stated and made
judgment and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018 and of the profit of the
Company for the that period;
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e that they had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adeguate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;
that the Annual Accounts had been prepared on a going concern basis.

* that they had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Secretarial Standards

The applicable Secretarial Standards i.e. 8§ = 1 : Secretarial Standard on Meetings of the
Board of Directors and 55 — 2 : Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by Institute
of Company Secretaries.of India have been duly followed by the Company.

Acknowledgement

Your Directors take this opportunity to place on record their appreciation for the valuahle
support and guidance received from ICICI Bank and other partner organizations, valued
Customers, Suppliers, Banks, Employees and the holding company, NIIT Limited.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
NIT Institute of Finance Banking and Insurance
Training Limited

Place: Gurugram Vijay K Thadani

Date: May 11, 20138 Chairman
DIN: 00042527



A Nraxuse

NIIT INSTITUTE OF FINANCE BANKING AND INSURANCE TRAINING LIMITED
REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or

programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR
policy and projects or Programs.

This CSR Policy (*Policy”) spells out the Company's philosophy towards its special
responsibilities and lays down the guidelines, framework and mechanism relating to the
implementation, monitoring, reporting, disclosure, evaluation and assessment of projects,
programs and activities forming part of Company's CSR.

The CSR Policy is
hittp:/www.ifbi.com/csr.aspx

displayed on the website of the Company at

Composition of the CSR Committee:

a) Mr. Anand Sudarshan, Independent Director

b) Mr. Parappil Rajendran, Non-executive Director
c) Mr. Sapnesh Kumar Lalla, Non-executive Director
d) Mr. Kumar Ashish, Non-executive Director

. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years:

Rs. 20.39 million

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above): Rs

0.41 million

Details of CSR spend for the financial year:
a} Total amount spent for the financial year; Rs. 0.41 million
b) Amount unspent, if any: NIL

¢) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

S. Project/ Sector | Location Amount outlay Amount | Cumulative | Amount
No. | Activities (budget)project | spenton | expenditure | spent
Or programs the | up to the Direct or
wise projects or | reporting through
programs period implementi
ng agency
/| Scholarship Education | Neemrana 0.41 million 0.41 million 0.41 million Direct
to students (Rajasthan)

6. CSR Committee declares that the Implementation and monitoring of CSR Palicy, is in
compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

A

_ wﬁ:\l Tl

Anand Sudarshan

Director

CSR Committee
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FORM NO. ADC 2
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties

referred to insub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length
transactions under third proviso thereto

ithi

Institute of Finance, Banking and Insurance

Annexure B

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8{2) of the Companies {Accounts)

Rules, 2014)

a b Details of contracts ar arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis
Name(s) of Natureof | Duration of Salient terms of | Justification _date[sjl of | Amount Date on which
the related contracts / the contracts/ | the contractsor | for entering | approval | paid as the special
party and arrangements | arrangements | arrangements or | into such by the advances, | resolution
nature of [ transactions | [ transactions | transactions contracts or | Board if ary: was passed in
relationship including the arrangemen general
value, if any ts or meeting as
transactions required
under first
proviso to
section 188
MIL
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis
| Name(s) of the MNature of Duration of the Salient terms of the contracts or = Date(s) of Amount
related party and contracts / | contracts/ arrangements or transactions approval by | paid as
nature of arrangements | arrangements/ including the value, if any the Board advances, If
relationship J/ transactions transactions 1 any:
MNIL
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
NNT Institute of Finance Banking and Insurance
Training Limited
Place: Gurugram Vijay K Thadani

Date: May 11, 2018

Chairman
DIN: 00042527




Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended as on March 31, 2018

Annexure - B

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration Rule, 2014]

i)
ii)
i)

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

CIN
Registration Date
Name of the Company

U80903DL2006PLC14972
14/06/2006

1

NIIT Institute of Finance Banking and Insurance Training Limited

iv)  Category / Sub-Category of the Company Limited by Shares
Company
v)  Address of the Registered office 8, Balaji Estate, First Floor, Guru Ravi Das Marg, Kalkaji, New Delhi-110019
and contact details
vi)  Whether listed company Yes / No
vii)  Name, Address and contact No
details of Registrar and Transfer
Agent, if any
1. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:-
Sr. No. Name and Description of main products / Services % to total turnover of the company
NIC Code of the Product/service
1 |Training and Tution Fees 854 88%
2 [Revenue Share — Royalty 854 12%
IIl.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Sr. No. |Name and Address of the CIN/GLN Holding / Subsidiary / Associate % of Shares held Application Section
Company
1 |NIT Limited L74899DL1981PLC0O15865 Holding Company 80.72% 2(87()ii)
IV. SHARES HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i) Category-wise Share Holding
Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change
during the
year
Demat Physical Total % of Total Demat Physical Total % of
Shares Total
Shares
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a. Individual/HUF 0 49,500 49,500 0.49% 0 49,500 49,500 0.49% 0
b.Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c. State Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d. Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e. Banks/Fll 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
f. Others 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total 0 49,500 49,500 0.49% 0 49,500 49,500 0.49% 0
(A) (1):-
(2) Foreign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
a) NRIs - Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Other - Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Banks / FlIs) Any Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(A) (2):-
Total shareholding of
Promoter (A)=(A)(1)+(A)(2) 0 49,500 49,500 0.49% 0 49,500 49,500 0.49% 0




B. Public Shareholding

1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Banks / FI 9,50,000 9,50,000 19,00,000 18.79% 9,50,000 9,50,000 19,00,000 18.79% -
c) Central Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
f) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
g) Flls 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
h) Foreign Venture Capital
Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
i) Others (Specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (B) (1):- 9,50,000 9,50,000 19,00,000 18.79% 9,50,000 9,50,000 19,00,000 | 18.79% 0
2. Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian 40,50,000 | 41,12,500 81,62,500 80.72% 40,50,000 | 41,12,500 81,62,500 | 80.72% 0
ii) Overseas
b) Individuals
i) Individual shareholders 0 500 500 0.01% 0 500 500 0.00% 0
holding nominal share capital
up Rs. 1 lakh
ii) Individual shareholders 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
holding nominal share capital in
excess of Rs. 1 lakh
c) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (B)(2):- 40,50,000 | 41,13,000 81,63,000 80.72% 40,50,000 | 41,13,000 81,63,000 | 80.72% 0
Total Public Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2) 50,00,000 50,63,000 1,00,63,000 99.51% 50,00,000 | 50,63,000 | 1,00,63,000 | 99.51% 0
C. Shares held by Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Grand Total (A+B+C) 50,00,000 51,12,500 1,01,12,500 100% 50,00,000 | 51,12,500 | 1,01,12,500 100% 0
(ii) Shareholding of Promoters
Sr. No. Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year
No. of Shares No. of Shares|% of total Shares |% of Shares No. of Shares  |% of total  |% of Shares % of Shares
of the Company |Pledged/encum Shares of  |Pledged/encu |Pledged/encumbered
bered to total the mbered to to total shares
shares Company [total shares
1 |Rajendra S Pawar 16,500 0.16% 0 16,500 0.16% 0 0
2 |Vijay K Thadani 16,500 0.16% 0 16,500 0.16% 0 0
3 [P Rajendran 16,500 0.16% 0 16,500 0.16% 0 0
Total 49,500 0.49% 0 49,500 0.49% 0 0
(iii) Change in Promoters' Shareholding (Please specify, if there is no change)
Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year
% of total shares of the No. of Shares No. of Shares % of total shares of
company the company
At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g No Change

allotment / transfer / bonus / sweat equity

etc)

At the End of the year
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year
For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders % of total shares of the No. of Shares No. of Shares % of total shares of
company the company
Bimal Jain 0.001 100
Samarjit Dey 0.001 100
At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Shareholding during th ifying th
areho |ng uring the year specifying the 100 -0.001
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g
. -100 -0.001
allotment / transfer / bonus / sweat equity
etc)
At the End of the year (or on the date of
separation, if separated during the year
Bimal Jain
Samarjit Dey 0 0
(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year
For Each of the Director and KMP No. of Shares % of total shares of the company No. of Shares % of total shares of
the company

Mr. Vijay K Thadani - Director

At the beginning of the year 16,500 | 0.16% |

Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g Nil movement during the year
allotment / transfer / bonus / sweat equity
etc)

At the End of the year [ [ 16,500 | 0.16%

Mr. P Rajendran - Director

At the beginning of the year 16,500 | 0.16%| |

Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g Nil movement during the year
allotment / transfer / bonus / sweat equity
etc)

At the End of the year [ | 16,500 | 0.16%

Mr. Pankaj Mamtani - Chief Financial Officer

At the beginning of the year 200 | 0.00% | [

Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g Nil movement during the year
allotment / transfer / bonus / sweat equity
etc)

At the End of the year 200 0.00%




V)

INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans excluding Unsecured Loans Deposits Total Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year
(i) Principal Amount
(ii) Interest due but not paid
(iiii) Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0
Total (i+ii+iii) 0 0 0 0
Change in Indebtedness during the financial
year
- Addition
- Reduction 0 0 0 0
Net Change 0 0 0 0
Indebtedness at the end of the financial
year
(i) Principal Amount
(ii) Interest due but not paid
(iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0
Total (i+ii+iii) 0 0 0 0
(VI) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
Sr. No. |Particulars of Remuneration# Name of MBAMTD/Manager Total Amount
Porkodi Palani (01.4.2017 - 31.3.2018)
1|Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961 29,01,588 29,01,588
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of Income-tax Act, 1961
(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax
Act, 1961 - -
2 [Stock Option* 1,29,375 1,29,375
3|Sweat Equity - -
Commission
- as % of profit
4|- others, specify... - -
5|Others, please specify 2,30,835 2,30,835
Total (A) 32,61,798 32,61,798
Ceiling as per the Act In accordance to Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013
* Remuneration includes only the perquisite value of Stock options exercised during the period, determined in accordance with the provisions of the
Income tax Act 1961.
B. Remuneration to other directors:
Sr. No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount
Narayanan Raja  |S.L. Bansal Anand Sudarshan
1|Independent Directors
- Fee for attending board committee meetings 2,80,000 1,00,000 1,20,000 5,00,000
- Commission 0 0 0 0
-Others, please specify 0 0 0 0
Total (1) 2,80,000 1,00,000 1,20,000 5,00,000
2|Other Non-Executive Directors
- Fee for attending board committee meetings
- Commission
Others, pleae specify 0 0 0 0
Total (2) 0 0 0 0
Total (B)=(1+2) 2,80,000 1,00,000 1,20,000 5,00,000
Total Managerial Remuneration NA NA NA NA
Overall Ceiling as per the Act NA
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Particulars of Remuneration#

Key Managerial Personnel

Arpita B Malhotra Pankaj Mamtani Total
CEO (Company Secretary) (CFO)
(01.4.2017 - 31.3.2018) (01.4.2017 - 31.3.2018)
Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961 0 13,79,423 28,77,837 42,57,260
b) Value of perquisites u/s 17
(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 0 1,850 32,400 34,250
c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income-tax Act,
1961 0 0 0 0
Stock Option 0 0 0 0
Sweat Equity 0 0 0 0
Commission
- as % of profit
- others, sepcify... 0 0 0 0
Others, please specify 0 43,956 97,626 1,41,582
Total 0 14,25,229 30,07,863 44,33,092

PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Section of the Companies Brief Description
Act

Type

A. Company
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
B. Directors
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
C. Other Officers in Default
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

Details of Penalty /
Punishment Compounding
fees imposed

Authority [RD/NCLT/COURT]
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of NIIT Institute of Finance Banking and Insurance Training Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of NIIT Institute of Finance Banking
and Insurance Training Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the vear then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016, as
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate aceounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safegnarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or ervor.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Owir responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder. We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specitied under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control
relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audil procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
eviluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS
financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Ind
AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, its profit including other comprehensive income, its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the vear ended on that date.

Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017 and the
transition date opening balance sheet as at April 01, 2016 included in these Ind AS financial statements,
are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with the
Compamies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, (as amended) specified under section 133 of the Act
read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 audited by the predecessor auditor whose report for the
vear ended March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016 dated May 12, 2017 and May 9, 2016 respectively
expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements, as adjusted for the differences in the
accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS which have been audited by
us.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure 1
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary far the purpose of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

(e} The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended;

(e} On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018, and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018, from
being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 27 to this report;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 20 to the Ind AS financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.
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iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAT Firm Registrafic

T: 101049W/E300004

jay Bachchani

Partner a0
Membership Number: 400419 %20 e
Place: Gurugram

Date: May 11, 2018
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ANNEXURE-1 REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 OF REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS
FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF NIIT INSTITUTE OF FINANCE BANKING AND INSURANCE
TRAINING LIMITED

Re: NIIT Institute of Finanee Banking and Insuranee Training Limited

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

{(b) The fixed assets are physically verified by the Management according to a phased programme
designed to cover all the items over a period of two vears which, in our opinion, is reasonahle
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme,
a portion of the fixed assets has been physically verified by the Management during the vear and
no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification,

() According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no immaovable
properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the company and accordingly, the
requirements under paragraph 13(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(it} The Company's business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under
paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{iii) (a) The Company has granted loans to a Company covered in the register maintained under section
18g of the Companies Act, 2013. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not prejudicial
to the company’s interest,

(b} In respect of the aforesaid loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest
has been stipulated for the loans granted and the repayments/receipts are regular,

(¢) There are no amounts of loan granted to Company listed in the register maintained under section
189 of the Companies Act, 2013 which are overdue for more than ninety days.

{iv) Tin our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upan.

{vl  The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and
the Companies (Aceceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions
of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(wi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not prescribed the
maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by
the Company.

(vii) (a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
inchiding provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, goods and service
tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it, The provisions relating to sales-tax, duty of
custom, duty of excise and value added tax are not applicable to the Company.
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(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in

respect of provident fund, emplovees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, goods and service
tax, cess and other applicable statutory dues were outstanding, at the vear end. for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(¢) According to the records of the Company, the dues of service tax on account of any dispute, are

(wiii)

{ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

{xii)

{xiv)

{xv)

as follows;

Name of the | Nature of | Amount Period to  Forum where |
statute dues (Rs.) which the | the dispute is
amount pending
e ea—— ﬁ]ates
Finance Aet, | Serviee Tax Rs.32.252.344 June 2008 to | Commissioner of
1994 February 2010 Service Tax,
- Delhi-T1
| Finance  Act, | Service Tax Rs.6,356.770 Financial Year | Commissioner of
| 1994 2010-11 & 2011~ | Service Tax,
12 Delhi-T1

The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowing dues in respect of a financial
institution or bank or to government or dues to debenture holders during the vear.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments/term loans
hence, reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented
upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the company or no fraud on the company by the officers
and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the vear,

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013,

In our apinion, the Company is not 4 nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause a(xii) of
the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting
requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company and, not commented Uporn.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred
to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.
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(xvi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Mﬁu{:iatcs LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAT Firmp Regispraig

Partner ',{L__;I : =
Membership Number: 401::41@1.'_':;_;_ - ,:..r-“f

Place: Gurugram
Date: May11, 2018
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ANNEXURE-2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
IND AS STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NIIT INSTITUTE OF FINANCE
BANKING AND INSURANCE TRAINING LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of NIIT Institute of Finance
Banking and Insurance Training Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the vear ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial cantrols
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Finaneial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduet of its business,
including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsihility

Our responsihility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls syvstem over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial stiatements
and their operating effectiveness, Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reprorting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the ussessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffieient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal finaneial controls system over financial reporting with reference to
these INIY AS financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Finaneial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these Ind AS financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
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accepted accounting prineiples, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these
Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or pracedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India,

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reis AL 5 gW/Eznooog

artner NG 5] /
Membership Number: 400419

R
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 11, 2018



NITT Institute of Finance Banking and Insurance Training Limited
N VBB DL 2006 P LOCT49T21

Balamce Shect
(AN amounts zre i R theneand, enless otherwise stated )
Asat

Particulars Nales Murch 31, 2014 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2006
ASSETS
Mam-turrenl pasels
Propemny, plant and equipsment 3 66 B3 1644 31789
(her mtangible assets 4 114 56 606.72 1,849 45
Financial nssets 5

Chher financial assets Sip L5T151 203891 391 87
Prefierred tax assets (net) t 13,5335 40 13814 68 G300 62
Urher non-curfent assets 7 4475 b4 L TTR S 3371132
Total nom-current assels 27.566.74 26419856 44,670,158
Corrent assets
Finamcial nssets 5

Trade receivables S} 16,335 71 34 862 20 11,5400 51

Cash and cash equivalent S {idib 14,126 04 (KR SRR 24,518 61

Hank balances other than above 5iv) TS0 T.650 00 500000

Cihir fimancial assels il R R 44,372 77 394211
Oher current assets T T.O0T4.35 @049 93 4,389 149
Total current assers 138, 1ML 1 162145 49,3904
TOTAL ASSETS 165,757.45 136,040,81 94.060.57
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equiny
Eqpuity share capital H 10H,125 00 10} 125000 I 125 00
Cher squity i 24 048 Th B 195 Hi {34 9864 At}
TOTAL EQUITY 131,075,764 1, 324080 Gh, 138,34
LIABILITIES
Current lnbilities
Francial hnbiinties:

I'rade pvables 10 () 19,586 51 12,234 99 21 K20 45

Oither financial linbilities 1 i} 294 78 2,249 87 282642
Prowisions 11 1,825 14 1.256.85 1,704, 75
Chher current labahnes Iz 107714 100 578 30 1AT 1]
TETAL LIABILITIES 3468364 2672001 2793323
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 16575745 1.56,040.81 O, 0, 57
The sccompanying notes form an sntegral pam of the these Amancial datement
As per our report of éven dane
For 5.0 Batliboi & Assacinte LLP For agd on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants
1CAL Farn Registr

NILT gnstitwte of Finance Banking and Insurance Training Limitsd

Vijay K Thadani
Diregtor
DM - (W 2527

‘)v-'-‘*"""‘l ; & ipsl
Pluge Gurugmm nnkaj Mamtani Arpita B, Malhotra

Mg Wav 112008 Cheef Financial Officer Comprany Secietarny

Place: Gurugram
[rare May 11, 2008



NHT Tastivute of Finanee Banking and Insurance Training Limited
UM URERID LGP 149721
Stkeinent of Profit and Loss for the year ended

LAl mmomnts ane m Ba owsand, onbess otherwise siated)

Particulars Marves March 31, 2K March 31, 2017
INCOME
Revenise from operamons 13 §32.485.80 LS54, 968 41
Urther inconse 4 109710 18, 118497
Total income 163,395 89 s, (R, T8
EXPENSES
Emploves benefins expense 15 11,740 51 9.2, 16
Professional & techrical owtsowcing cxperse 56,823 36 LLCRL NN
Cparse axecuton ERpenses 51,0562 FTA5T |9
Dieprecantion and amortzation experse Jdod 50T 147383
Other oxpensed 13 12,348.07 1132408
Tivial ey penses 153, 261,09 116, 25228
Profit betore tax 30,134,830 0854
Inconie tiy expense:

L Ement b 17 i) T.3M:3.53 |1 400k 31

~Lhetermed tax 17 i) 6d] 56 (4.520.30)
Total tax eupense RIS LT B MTRIN
Prafit for the year 21,1296 41055

(bther comprehensive income | (expense
Teerren Wi wall i e ecleecsafiod fo preofis or foss

= Remeasurement of post-cmpliviment benefit obhgabions (52000} 3300
« Inconme tax change | enediny relaring 10 these items 17 i} 143,27 15614
Ohiher comprebensive income for the veir, net of tix (376,731 116.76
Todul comprehensive income for the vear 21.752.96G A3, 18246

Earmings per tqujrlt)' share (Face value Kz, 10 eachi:
-Beasie and [hlused i 2% 425

The pecampaying noles form an micuzal part of these Bnancial stmement
As per oar répont of even date

For 5.0, Batliboi & Associate PLF
Chartered Accomsnms
1A Fiom Begistra

Far gnd on beholf of the Board of Directors of
NIVR Institute of Finance Bunking amnd Insurance Teaining Limited

Vijay b Thudoni

Dhggeton
DI - N2527
ol L i ,
Place: Cimegram Punkaj Mamiani Arpita allwiira
Drate: Moy 11,2008 Chief Financanl O fficer C oy Secretary R

Flace: Gumiram
Dinte: May 11, 2008 {



MUY Institute of Finance Banking and Insucance Training Limited
C1%N: L AOWIS L2006 1L 149721
Statement of changes in cquity for the vear ended

a) Equity slare capital

(Al pssunts are o Re thousand, unless otherwise saged
Particilars Motes Number Amaunt
Eqquiry' sleare of Bs 1 each issued, subscnbed and filly pasd
s at April 1, 2006 H Bk D12 541 101,125,060
Changes in equity slare capital dinig the year - :
As at March 31, 2007 L] ik 112500 101,125,060
Changes in equry share capital during he year = s
As at March 31, 20018 Pk 112,500 TN, 125,00
hi Chther equity Penbes Retnined Earmings Tatal
As at April |, 20046 " 134,580,066 [ 34,980,66
Profit for the vear 42955 T 41 E5T0
Oalver comprelensive ivcome inst of ) X T 226:Th
As at March 31, 207 W ENLLE I B 9520
Profit for the vear 3212969 1242060
Otheer comprehensive imconme’ |expense) inet of ax) {37673 {31T6:73)
Asat March 31, 2018 25,548,740 219,948,746

The accompanying oofes form an imleal pant of the these finoncial statement
A pet oar teport of even date

For 5.R. Batliboi & AssociateflLP For gnd on hehalf of the Bagrd of Directors of
Clertered Accountants Institute of Finance Bunking and Ipgurance Training Limited
ICAL Form Besisira =

FWERND0NT

Vijay k Thadani
Dhrecton
Dl = (042527

n
‘J..w‘f"—] m',sp,;
Place: Gurugram Fankaj Mamiani Arpitn H,ﬁfvm‘-r_l
Date My 11, 2008 Uhvet Financial Difficer Compimy Secreiany

Place, Gurgram
Drde Blany 11, 20018



MUT Institute of Finance Banking and Insurance Training Limited
CIM: USRI ML 49721
Cush Flow Statement for the vear ended

(Al amounts are in Bs thonsand, unbess odherwize siated

Particalars March 31, 2018 March 51, 217
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Frofit before tax 30, 134,80 4983470
Adil | Less) 5

Dreprecaation and smorfiztion L | 147583
Intered imcome (7025590 {5.648.00)
Profin on sabe of current investment {1,763 %) :
Provasion for dowbiful debs . 2Ny
Prowision for doolaiul advimeesand deposics | TR =
Advances written ol - 403 21
Liabilines! provizeoms no longer requized wnitten back (1,735 49 (4271:45)
Chperating profit before working capital changes 2198811 4411549
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Incrense’ (decrease) rade pavables T.751 52 (5322 098)
{ Decrease 1 inereass other current labilies (bl 16) QA0 19
Inereasg! (decrease) other fmancial halnlites curent 2,170,440 (57045,
Incrense! (decrease) short-lerm provisions 291 68 (310,143
Diecrease) {incremse) ciment trade recervables 18,526 449 (25630415
Decrerse’ {imcreius) oller curten] wssets 14975 5% 4 Bhi0 T4y
Dwicrease {incrense) other bank balances 1, 1 () [2.650.00)
Decrease viher finmncial assets current 226,74 113406
Unerease ) other financial assets non-cumen: (931260} {2050 45)
Cish generated from operations 49.616.76 13,540.47
Dnreet tax {pard) |/ refund recerved (net) (2. 206.40) 11621 3
Met cash Trom opecating activities (A) TALLSS 15, 16167
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of fixed assers (3.7 [ L]
Sale of mutual fusds 81,263 99 .
Purchiase of mutual funds (T A00,00) .
Loans given to Holdine Company {498 D 00 {0 £H00
Lovang grven v Holdie Compay recesved hick 0 O A -
[ierest peceaved & 268 26 40184 27
Met cosh used ininvesting activities (B} (46, 969.45) (35.994.23)
FINAMNCING ACTIVITIES:

Net cash Trom (used in) foancing activities (07} - -
Mot increase! (decrease) im cash & cash equivalents (A -+ () + (0} A0 {10,832 56)
Cash and cash equivalents as oi the beginning of the year 13,684,015 24 51861
Cash and cash equivalents as ot the end of the vear 14.126.95 13,686, k5
Ciesh amd cash equivalents

Balunce with banks

Current accounts T AR50 |3 686,08
Bank depomts with ongmal msturity of 3 moaths or less bLATI 45

14,126.55 13,686,015

I accompanying modes form an wbegral part of the these financial ssatemen
Al per our report of even de

For 5K, Batlibod & Associate LLFP For
Chartered Aceoumtants |
ICATL Firnn Registrgnn

nd o behalf of the Board of Ddrectors of
U Institute of Finance Banking and Insurance Training Limited

Thrector

! 253 DA - b 2527
= f ‘ z
Place: Curigram Pankaj Mamtani Arnala B. %‘
Drarel May 11, 2018 Chaet Fowancial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Gurugram
Crate:. May 11, 2(H %
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NIT Institute of Finance Banking and Insurance Training Limited
CIN: USO90IDL2006PLC149721
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2018

Company informetion

NIT Institute of Finance, Banking amd Insurance Tramng Lunited ('the Company’} is domiciled and ineorporated i India as on June 14, 2006 with equity
participation from NIT Limited and ICIC1 Bank Limited. The main object of the Company 13 1o provide trammg and traming content in bankng finance &
insurance sectors. The registered place of business of the Company 15 K, Balap Estate, First Floor, Gure Ravi Das Marng, Kalkaji, Mew Delthi- 110019

Sigmificant accounting policies
This nete provides a list of the sigmificant aceounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. These poelicies have been congistently
apphied wall the vears presented, unless otherwise stated

Basis of preparation

Complisnce with Ind A%

The financial statements of the Company has been prepared 1w comply 0 all matenal aspects with Indian Accounting Standards {lnd A8} rotified under section
133 of the Companies Act, 2003 (the Act) read together with Rule 3 of the Companies (Tndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2005 and Companies { Indan
Accounting Standards) amended Rule, 2016 wssued by the Mmistry of Corporates Atfars ((MOA')

The sand financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2008 are the first Ind AS finencial statements of the Company The transition 0 Ind AS has been
carried out from accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 o the Companies {Accounts) Rules,
2014 CIGAART), which is considered as the Previcus GAAP, for purposes of Ind A5 101, Refer note 23 for an explanation of how the mansition fiom previous
GAAF to Ind AS has atfected the Company s financial position, financial performance and cash lows

The financial statemonis-are based on the clissification provisions contuned i Ind A% 1, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements” and divasion 11 of schedule 11 of
the Companies Act 2013 Further, for the purpose of clantv, vanous iems are sgerepated in the statement of profit and loss and balance sheet, Nonetheless. these
items are dis-aggregated: separatehd in the notes 10 the financial statements, where applicable or tequired. All the amounts meluded in the financial statements e
repored i Bs. thousand (" Rupees' or "Bs "y and are rounded o the nearest thousand with two decimals, excepl per share datn and unless stated otherwise

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on g historical cost bases. except for the following
= Financral assets and Babilines are measored at fair valoe or amortized cost

* Drefined henefit plans — plan assels measured at fair value.

= Share-hased pryments (ESOFs)

Current - non carrent classification

Assets and habihities are classified into current and non-current a3 follows

Asseis

An asset 15 classified as current when it sateslies any of the following criterea;

= ibis expected o be realized i, or 15 intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating ovele,

* it 15 held primanky for the purpose of being traded.

=it is-expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporumg peniod,; o

=1t is cash or cash equivalent unless it 15 restricted from being exchanged or used 1o settle a hablty for o1 least 12 months afier

the reporting period

Current assets inglude the current portion of non-current fnancial assets, All other pssets (ncluding deferred tax assets) ane classfied as non=currem

Liabilities

A hability 15 classified as current when b satisfies any of the followime crirenia:

=11 is expected o be settled in the Company’s normal operating cvele,

= it1s beld primarly For the purpose of berng traded.

* 1115 due o be settled within 12 months after the reporting period. or

= the Company does not have an urconditional fght 1o defer serdement of the lability for a1 beagt |2 months atter the

reporting period Terms of a liability that could. at the option of the counterparty, result 1 its settlement by the issue of eguity

nstruments do ot affect 1ts classification

Current labilities include the current porion of non-current financial habilines. All other habilioes {ncluding deferred tax habilines) are-classified & non-current

Operating cyche

The operating cycle 15 the ime between the acquisition of assets for processing and ther realizaton m cash or cash cquivalents. Based on the nature of operations
and the time between the acquisibon of sssets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. the Company has asceramned 15 operiling cycle
being a penod of 12 months for the pirpose of classification of sssets and habilities as current and non- current

RKevenue recognition
Revenue 15 measured atthe far value of the consideration recerved or recevable. Amounts disclosed: 55 revenue are net of retums. trade allowances, Tebates,
dhscounts wnd Lixes

When two or more fevenue generating activibies or deliverables are provided under a single armangement. gach deliverable that 15 conssderad 1o be a separate umt of
aceount is gccounted separately. For allocanmg the consideration, the Company has measered the re : "

at ets fair value, i peeerdance with the principles given in Ind A5 18
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The Company recognizes Tevenie when the anount of revenuz can be refmbly mieasured, it is probable that future sconomic benefits will Mow 1o the entity and
specific entena have been met for each of the Company’s acuvities a5 deseribed bedow. The Company bases: s estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction wnd the specifics of cach amangenient

(1) Revenue from the training services 15 recognized over the period of the course programs, For fixed-price contracts, tevens 15 recoznized based on the et
service provided ull the end of the reporting penod as a proportion of the total services 1 be provaded (percentage of completion method) Revenue from 1ime and
materil contraces 15 recognted as the related services are performed

(i Revenue from rovaley i acerued on s monthly basis as and when the tuning is delwvered

Other income

Tnterest imcome from debd instruments, is recognized using the effective mterest rate methed. The effective interest rate 13 the rate that exactby dsscounts estmated
future cash receipts through the expected hfe of the fmancial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset When calculating the elfective interest rake, the
Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the fimancial instrument (for example, prepayvment, extension, call and
similar options ) but does not consider the expected credit losses

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported m o -manner consistent with the imemal reporting provided 1o the Chiet Operating Decision Maker (CODM) The Mangger and
CFO o the Company are considered as ehiel operating decision makers who assesse the financial performance and position of the Company, and make strolegic
decisiong

Income ixes
The income tax expense or eredit for the period is the tas payable on the current period's txable neome based on the appliceble meome tax rate m India adjusted
by changes in deferred iy assets and babities attnbutable to temporany differences and (o unosed @y losses

The turrent mcome tax charge 15 caleulated on the basis of the tax laws nacted or substantively enacted i India o1 the end of the reporting peniod. Management
pariodicatly svalites positions tiken in tax returns vath respect 10 situations i which applicable tax regulation 1s subject to inerpretation. It establishes PrOVISIONS
where approprinte on the basis of amounts expected 1o be paid 10 the s suthorities

Deferred income tax 15 provided in ull, using the Bability methidd, on lemporary differences ansmg betwesn the tax bases of assets-and babilities and their Carmvng
armeunis in the financial statements. Deferred income tax s determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred noome tax asset 15 realized o the deferred income tax lability is setfled

Dheterred tax assers are recogmized for all deductible temporary differences and wnnsed tax fosses anby il it 15 probable that futere taxable amounts will be pyatlable
to utilize those temporary differences and losses

Current and deferred tax iy recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates 1o ems recognized in other comprehensive income o directly 0 eguity
In this case. the tax s also Tecognized in other comprehensive income or ditectly 1 equity, as the case may be

Minmmum Altesnative Tox ("MAT") eredit entitlemant under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 15 recopmized us o defermed ay asset when it 1% probable
that future economic benefit associated with it n the form of adjustment of future income tax liabhty, will fow 1o the Company and the asset can be measuesd
rebuthly. MAT credit entitlerment 15 set off 10 the extent allowed i the vear in which the Company:becomes hable to pay income Taxes o1 the enocted tax rates
MAT credit entitloment is reviewed at each reporting date and 1 recognized 1o thie extent that is pribable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be used. MAT credit entitlement has been presented as deferred tax asset i Balunce Sheet. Significant management judgement 1s required to determine
the procbabiliey of recognition of MAT credit entitlement and deferred tax

oh Leases

Leases i which asigmiicant portion of the nisks and:rewards of ownership are not transtermed to the Company as lesses are clasalied as operating leages, Pavments
made under cperating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profic o loss on a straight-line basis over the penod of the lease unless
the payments mre struciured wonereass in line with expécted genernl inffation o compensate for the ledsor's expected inflationary cost increases,

ht Chher financial assets

1. Classification

The Company ¢lassifes 12 financial assets i the fllowing megsurement cilegonis:

* those to be measured subsequently ai fiur value deither thiough other comprehensive imeome, or through profit or loss), and

* those measured at amortized cost

The classication depends on the Company s basiness model for managing the financial assets and the contractuad terma of the cash Dows

i, Measurement
AL imtial recognition, the Company measures & financial asser at its far value Any subsequent change in the fair valie 15 charged 1o profit o loss

iiiy bmypairment of Doancial assets

The Company assesses on o forward Jooking basis the expected credit bosses associated with s assets carried ot gmortzed cost The impairment methodolngy
applicd depends on whether there has been a significant increass i credin nsk

For rade recervables only. the Company apphes the simplified spproach permitted under Ind AS 109 “Fancial Instruments”, which requires expected lifetime
losses b be recopmeed from initial recognition of the receivables:




i Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpese of presentation m the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents meludes cash on hand, other short-term, highly Lguid mvestments with
original maturities of three months or less that sre readily convertible to'known amaounts of cash and which are subject to an mnsignificant risk of changes im value

1 Treade receivahles

Trade recesvables are recogmeed instially ad fair vilue and subsequently adjested for expected credit loss using the effective interest method

k1 Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated 5t historcal cost less depreciation. Histonical cost includes expenditure that 15 direetly attributable to the

acquisiion of the items

Subsagquent costs are included in the osset’s cariving amount or recoznzed as separate assel, as appropriate, only when ot is probable that future. coonomic
benefits associated with the em will flow o the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carnving amount of any component accounted for
as @ separate asset 15 de-recognized when replaced Al other repairs and mamienanes are charged 1o profit or loss dunng the reponting period m which they are

incurred

Transition to Ind AS

On framsition to Ind AS, the Company hos elected o continue with the net carrvang, value of all of 15 property, plant and equipment recogmzed as at Apnl 1, 2016

messured a5 per the previons GAAP and use that net carmving value a5 the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment

Depreciation methods, estimated wseful lves and residual valuse

Diepreciation is caloulated using the steaight-line methiod to allocate their cost. net of their residual valugs, over their estimated useful Tives 2% Tollows:

Description of assets Liseful life

Pant and equipment’s including:
Computers, printers and related accessories Fyears
Compaters servers and networks 5 vears
Electrome squipment's B wears

- Air conditioners 111 wears

All other assets (including vehicles)

Rates  prescnbed under

Schedule I o

Compamies Act, 2013

the|

Depreciation s provided on a pro-rata basis on the straght-lne method over the useful hfes of the assets. The depreciation charge for each penod is recagmzed in

the Statement of Profit and Loss, The residual values is considered as mil
The asser's residual vabues and useful Irves are reviewed, and adiusted i appropriate, at the end of each reporting period,

An assel’s varrving amaoint 15 writben down imemeadiately 1o its recoverable amount if the asset’s carmving amuoumnt 15 greater than its estimated recoverable amoum

Caums and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds sith carmyime amount. These are included in profit or loss wathin ather gainsd (losses |

11 Intangible assets
Computer software - acquired
Shown at kcquistion cost and are subsequently carmied arcost less accumulated amortzation and impairment losses
Educational content / products - internally generated

Drevelopmient costs that dre direttly attnbutable to the design, development snd testing of wentifiable and unique educational coentent | products controlled by the

Lompany ape recogmzed as mtangible assets when the following critenia are met

* it is techmically feasiblé o complete the developmient so that it will be avanlable for use,

* mandgement intends to complete the content ! products and use.

« there 15 an abihity 1 ouse o sell content / products

+at can be demonstrmed how the content © product wall generate prohahle ftwre ccomomie benetits:

« slequote techmical, francial and other resouices W complete the development and 19 ese or sell the content | product are available, and
* the expenditure annibutable o the content £ product dunng its develapment can be reliably measired

Drectly attnbutable costs that are capitalized as part of the inangible inelude emplovee costs and an appropriate pormon of elevant overhiads

Capitalized development costs are recorded o8 intangible assers and amorteed from the point ot which (e assat s availakle for use.

Amortization methods and periods
Intangible assets are arnortized on g streght line basis over their estimated useful lives which aee as follows

Particular Ulseful 1ife
Internally generated (content | products) 35 vears
Acquired (soflware) 3-3 venrs

Transition to Ind A%

O transition o Ind AS. the Company has elected o continug with the net carmying value ofall of intangibie nssets recozniecd as al April 1, 2016 mensured a5 per

the previous CAMAP and use that net cormving value as the deemed costof intangible assets.




) Impairment of assets
Assels ore tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumsiances indicate that the carmyving: amaunt may ool be recoverable - An mmpasrment loss is
recognized for the amount by which the asset’s cirmang amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable gmount is The lagher oF an assel’'s fair value less
costs of disposal and valie inouse, .
An impairment loss is reversed iF there has been a change in the estimates used 1o detenmine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal s made onlv 10 the extent that
thie ssel's cortying amount does not exceed the carmying amount that woneld have been determined, net of amuthization. if no imparment loss had been recognized

ni Trade and other payables
These amoants represent liabilities for goods and services provided w the Company prior i the end of financial vear which dre unpaid, Trade and other payahies
are presented as current habilities unless pavment i5 not due within 12 months after the reporting penod. They are recogmzed minally- at their faor value and
subsequently measured:at amortized cost using the effective intesest methaod

i) Provisions
Provizions are measufed at the present value of manggement’s best estimate of the expenditure Tequired to settle the present obligaticn al the énd of the reporting
pesiod The discount mate used to determing the present velue is.a pre-tax mie that reflects current market assessiments ol the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability, The merease n the provision due to the passage of time 15 recognized as intercst expense

1t Employes benefits
i, Short-term obligations )
Liabalities for wiges antd salares, including non-monetiry: benefits that ane expected to be settled wholly wathin §2 months after the end of the peniod m which the
emplovees render the related service are recognized inorespect of emplovess” services up 10 thee end of the reporting pemod and are measured at the amounts
expecied o be paid when the libihies are settled. The labilitics are presented as current emplovee benefit ohligations in the balance sheet

ii. Other long-term employee benefit oblizgations

The hirbilities for earmed leave and sick leave are not expectéd w be Settled wholly wathin 12 months after thee end of the pericd i which the emplovess render the
related service: They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future pavments 10 be made m respect of services provided by emplovess up o the
end of the reporting penod using the projected umt eredit method The benefits are discounted using the minrket yields at the end of the reporting period that have
torms approximating o the terms of the related obligation, Remeasurements as o result of expenence odjustments and changes i actuanial assumplions are
recognized in profit or loss

The obligations arg presented o8 current habilities in the bafance sheet of the entity does not have an unconditional nght @ defer settlement for an least twelve
maonths after the reponing period, regardless of when the actial setdement s expected 10 occur.

iii. Post-employ ment obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes

- Defined benefit plans such as Gratuity and Compensated Absences,

- Pefined contribution plan such as Providen Fund, Superannuation Fund, Pension Fund and National Pension Svstem.

Giratuiy

The hahility or asset recognizzd inothe balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuty plans s the present value of the detined benafit abligation at the end of
the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets, The defined heneli obligation is ealculated annually by actuanies using the projected unit eredit method

The present value of the defined benefit obligaton 15 determimed by discounting the estmated future cash outflows by reference o market vields at the end of the
reporting penind on government bonds that have terms approxmating to the ems of the related obligaton.

The et amerest cost s calculitest by apphying the discount mte @ the net balance of the defined benefit abligation and the fair valee of plan assets, This cost is
included m emploves bénelit expense in the statement of profit and foss

Remeasurement gains and losses ansing from expenence adjustments and. changes m-actuanial assumpoons &re recogmzed m the penod i which they occur,
directly moother comprehensive income. They are included in retained eamings i the statement of changes m egquity and i the balance sheet

Changes m the present value of the defined benefit obligation are recognized immedutely in profit or loss as past service cost

Compensated absences
Liabihty m respect of compensated absences s provided for hoth encashable leave and those expected to be avarled  The Company has defined benefit plins fr
compensated absences for emplovees, the labihity for which 15 determined on the basis of an actuarial valugton at the end of the year using projecied unit coedin
method - Any gan or loss ansing oul of such valuation w recognised i thee statement of profit and 16ss as moome or expense s the case miy be.

Accumulated compensated absences which are expected o beavailed within twelve: months from the end of the vear are weated as short term emploves benefits
The obbeation towerds the same 15 measured at the expected undiscounted cost of accumulated compensated absences expected o be availed basad on the
wnutilized entithement ot the vear end




Provident fumd

The Company”s contnibution tossards Provident Fund s charged 1o Statement of Profit and Loss

Prowvident fund contributions ans made 10 the Regional Provident Fund Comnissmoner inacoordance with the Employes Provident Fund Bules and are accounted as
dutined contribution plans and charged to Statement of Profit and Loss

Superannuation fund

The Company makes defined contribution, o the Trust established for the purpose by the Holding Company Contrtbution mide towards superannuation fund
maintaned with Lile Insurance Corporation of India. The Company hias no further obligations bevond s monthly contnbutions, Contribution made. during the
wear 15 charged weStatensent of Profit amd Loss

Pension Fund
The Company makes defined contribution to a government admmistered pension fund towards it's pension plan on behalf of its emplovess. The Company has no
further abhigations bevond its monthly contributions. The contribution towards Employes Penston Scheme 1s charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Mational Pension System
The Company makes defined contribution towards Natienal Pension Svatem for certain emplovees for which Company has no funher obligation, Comtributions
miarde during the year are charged to Statement of Profitand Loss.

q) Share capital

Equity shares capital
Lssuance of ordinary shares dne recognized as equity share capatal i equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new equity shares are
recopnized as o deduction from equity, net of any tax effects

rt Earning per share

L Basic earnings per share
Basic ecamings per share is calculated by diiding the profit atinbutable to cwners of the Company by the weighted sverage numbsr of equity shares outstanding
dunng the fmancial year.

fi. Priluted carnings per share

Dhluted earmings per share adjusts the Ngures used i the determmation of basic earmings per share to ke inte account

* the after income tax eftect on interest and other financing eosts associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

« the weighted average number of additional eguaty shares thit would hisve been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilufive potential equity-shares.

=) Fair vilue measurement

L

—

Fair value 1s the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer @ liabaline in an orderly trinsaction between markel participants ot the measurement
date The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the nsset or wansfer the Tiability takes place enther

- In the principal market for the asset or hability, or

- In the uhsence of a principal market, In the most advantageous market for the asset or liabiliy

Thie principal o the moest advantageous markel must be accessible o7 by the Company

All assers amd labilities for whech fair value is measured or discloséd n the fimancial statements are categorized within the for valie hierarchy, desiribed as
follows; based on the lowest level mpur that s significant to the far value measurement as a whole:

Level | Level | hierarchy includes financial instraments measured using quoted prces. This includes hsted equity mstruments, rraded bosds and mutual fands
that have quated price. The far value ofall eqesty mstraments (including bonds) which are traded in the stock exchunges 15 valued using the closing price as at the
reportmg penod. The mutual funds are valeed osing the closing net asset valus

Level 20 The fair value of financisl instruments that are not traded 0 an active market (for example foreign exchange. torsard contractsh s determined using
valuation technigues which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as Tinde as possible on entity-specitic estmates. 1 all significant inputs reguired 1o
Farr wardue an instrument are observable. the mstrument 1s mcleded in level 2

Level 3: I one ar more of the significant inputs 15 not based on ebservable market data, the mstrument 15 mcluded m bevel 3 Thes 15 the case for unlisted sguity
securnbies; contingent consideration and indemmnification asses micluded in level 3

For assets and habalities that are recogmized in the Onanceal statements on a recuming basis; the Company determines whether transiers have occurred between
levels i the hierarchy by reassessing categonzation (hased on the lowest level input that is significint Lo the far value measurement 45 a whole) at the ¢nd of each
reporting period

For the purpose of fur value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteriatics and risks of the
asset or liability and the level of the fair value herarchy as explined ahove

Critical accounting estimates wnd judgements
In preparing these Anancial statements, management has made judgements. sstimtates and assumptions that affect the apphication of sccounting policies and the
reponted amounts of assets, labilites, income and expenses: Actual results may differ from these gstimanes,

Estimates and underiving assumptions are reviewed onan ongomg basis: Revisions i accounting estmates are recogmized prospectively

Information shout sigmificant aréas of estimation/uncertamty and judgements. i applying accounting palicies that ha emificant =ffect on the financial
stutements are as follows




- Measurement of defined benefit obligations; key actuanal assumpbions - refer nele 2 (p)
- Measuremient of usetul lifie and residunl vilues of property. plant and equipment und mtangibies assets - refer note 2 (k) and 211)
- Fanr yalue messurement of financil instruments - refer note 2 (s)
= Judgement required 1o determine probabuhiey ol recogmtion of deferred tax assets and MAT credit entitlement = refer note 2 (6,
Thiere ire i migor assumptions and estmation that have a sigmficant nsk of resulting m a maténal adjustment within the next finangial yepr

1.2 Kecent accounting proneuncements

Ind A5 115 Revenuoe from Contracts with Custemers

IND AS |15, Revenue from Contract with Castomers © Cn March 28, 2018, the MCA notified the TND AS 115 The core prineiple of this IND AS is that an entity
shoubd recognize revenue 1o depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that refiecta the consideration 1 which the entity expects
fio be entitled inexchange for those goods and services. Further the new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timeng and uncertamty of
rewenue and cash flows anising from the entiny's coniracts wirh customers

Ind AS 115, establishes a frve-step madel to account For revenue ansimg rom contracts with customers. Elnder Tnd AS 115, revenue 15 recognized at an omount that
reflects the consaderanion t which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferming poods or services (oo customer

The new revenue stundard will supersede all curment revenue recignition requirements under Ind A8 This new standand requires revenue (o be recopnized whin
promised goods or services are transferred to customens. in- amounts tha reffecs the consideration fo which the Company expects 1 be entitted i exchange for those
goods or services. Adoption of the new rules could atfect the taming of revenue recognition for certaan transactions of the Company, Ind A5 115 15 effective for the
Compatry in the irst guanter of facal 2019 ysing either one of two methods. (1) retrospectively to each pror reporting penod presented im accordance with [nd A3
% Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, with the ophion toelect certgin pragtical expedients a8 defined within Ind A8 115 (the full
rerrospeciive method i or (i) retrospectively with the cumulatve effect of imitially applying Ind AS 115 recognieed at the date of initial apphication (April 1, 2018)
and providing certain additional disclosures as defined i Ind AS 115 (the modifed retrospective method )

The Company continues to evaluate the available transition methods and its contractual amangements. The ulbimate wmpact on revenue resuliing from the
applicaiion of Ind A5 115 will be subject to assessments that are dependent on many vamables, meludimg. but not homted o, the terms of the contriciual
arrangements and the mix of business,  The Company’s considerations also inciude, but are not limited 10, the comparability of its financial statements: and thie
comparability wathin s industry from application of the new standard o its contracteal arrengements.. The Company has established an implementation 1eam 1o
implement Ind AS 113 related 1o the recognition of revenue from contracts with customers and i@ continues 1o evaluate the changes o accounting system and
processes, and addional disclosure requirements that may be necessary.

Upon adoption the Company gxpects there to be o change i the manner that variable considerabion in certain revenue amangements 15 recognized rom the curment
practice of recognizing sech revenue as the services are performed and the vanable consideration 15 earned 1 estimating the achievability of the variahle conditions
when e Company beging delivening services and recogmzing that amount over the contractual pened. The Company also expects a change in the manner that it
recognizes centam mcremental and fulfilment costs from expensing them as incurred 1o deferring and récogmaing them over the contractunl period A relable
exhimmate of the quantitative impect of Ind AS 115 on the financial statements will enly be possible onee the implementation praject has been completed
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NIHT Institute of Finance Banking and Insurance Training Limited
CIN: US03DL2006FLOC 149721

Muotes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Property, Plant and equipment

Particulars

Deemed cost as a1 Apnil 1. 2016%
Additions
Closing gross carrving as at March 31, 2017 (A)

Accumulated depreciation
Depreciation charge for the vear
Closing depreciation as at March 31, 2017 ()

Met carrying amount as at March 31, 2007 (A-B)
Ciptrung gross carmying amoant as at Apnl |, 2017

Additionz
Dhisposils

Closing gross earrying amount as at March 31, 2008 (A)

Accumulated depreciation

Orpering accumulated depreciation as at Apnl 12007
Depreciation charge for the vear

[isposals

Closing accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 20018 ()

Met carrying amount as at March 31, 20018 (A-B)

(Al amounts are in Bs. theusand, unless otherwise stated)

* The Company has availed deemed cost exemption and used the previous GAAP net carrving amount of Property, Plant and

Equipment as deemed cost

Other Infangible assets

Particulars

Lreemed costas at April |, 2016%*
Addmioms
Closing gross careying as ot March 31, 2007 (A)

Accumulated amortization
Amortzation
Closing amortization as at March 31, 2007 (B)

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2017 (A-B)

Cipening gross carmymg amount s ot Apnl |, 20017
Additions
Closing gross carrving as at March 31, 2008 (A)

Accumuplated amortization

Cipening amortiation as at Apeil 12017
Amortizaton

Closing amortizatien as at March 31, 2018 (B)

Net Carrying Amonnt as at March 51, 2008 (A-H)

** The Company has availed deemed cost exemption and used the previons GAAP netl carmying amou

deemed cost

Plant and
Machinery - S s
Computers and Vehicles Total

peripherals

n7157 132 317,89

78:50 . 7850

296.07 11M.32 3. 39

132,58 1K) 32 232.90

132,58 104).32 232,90

163.49 LM} 163,49

20607 10,32 39639

370 - 370

§1.75 - BL75

21802 1K 32 35 M

13238 106,52 23290

1(d1 35 - .55

81.74 i $1.74

151.19 1) 52 251.51

683 [RILL i B3

Educational Content
!/ Products Internally Soltware Acquired Total

Generated

T30.56 |0 e |.849 65

750,56 10990 1.849.65

750,56 Ju3 37 1,242.495

T50.56 49237 1,242.93

[RILE 6,72 6il}6,72

T50.56 | 099 09 1 8449 65

30,560 1,055, 0% 1,549.65

7556 49237 1.242.93

- 492 36 4492 36

TEL 56 184,73 1,735.29

A1) 114.36 114.36

angible assets as
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AT Institute of Finance Banking and Insurance Training Limited
C1%: LSS DL 2006 PLC 149711
Moates 10 the financial starements for the vear emded March 31, 2018

ANl mreanes pre o Bs. thoassnd, unless otlierwise stabed)

Financial Assets As al
Farticudurs March 31, 2008 .\-'inn:h 51,107 April 12006 March 31, 2015 March 31,2007 April 1, 2016
Som Current Current
Chther Finamcial Assers
Security depusits receivable
Unsegured. considered goodd . I RTR S0 24138 Tigsn? 1,590,458 30T
Undecuned. sonsiderad dowhttul LTTE M 3 5 . - .
Less: Provision for doubriul deposas (1778 04} - - - » .
- J.all\.!ﬁl 24238 158562 2.500.45 3,160,786
Ingerest receivable - - 151508 1. 76041 195 65
251804 1,764l 195 6%
Uiher receivables - - FA | SR Gl
- = 21 SE5.66
Lang-term deposits with bank:
With origanal maturay of more than 12 months 2471451 ey 14 29
457551 LS ] 14029
Lawms o relaved partbes (Heler noie 24}
Linsegisred, considersd good QF DA A0
B 95,1 HI AU, 00
B.573.80 103891 J‘!'l_.{l'l' 09370 4437257 942,11
As ar
Trade Receivables Marvch 51, 28 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
(Ruler ok 14) Current
|nsegured. considered good 1538 T 34, 56220 1 1A44. 51
Linsecured, considersl dowhiiul I1.03% 65 11,0349 6% 571946
Less: Alowance for doubitl debis RIS R Y] (11,039 655 i, 71 46)
1633571 A4.562, 20 1134051
As
Cash and Cash Equivalent March 51, 2113 March 31, 20017 April 1, 2006
Balamee wath banks
Cuirtenl Aceiums Td54 50 13 10 04 1151861
Lheposite wirth orgenal matunty of kess than 5 months R 130400000
14,126,958 13,686.05 1451861
Bank balamces other than wboye:
Bank deposits
With origimal maariy of more than 3 wonths and wpio 12 months TS0 5 K0 ik
TS0 H S,0H0, 18
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NIT Institute of Finance Banking and Insurance Trining Limited
I LS OR0 L 0L 149721
Mok [e e Tmanczad sisiremenis For fhe year ended March 31, 2008

Delerved Tas Asseds (MNet)
Particubars

T hakamee camprises iemparary differemces ativibarabe to:
Privvaning

Diefined betnefit obligauons

Fair valiaiion of financial asseis

Oiher ikema

MAT credi endithenyent

Tatal delerred fax assel

Less Dheferred ma assets nid iwcagnieed m absence of probabiline of utilizstion agains fare wiable income

[referred pas assed |nery

{AN ammounts are in B dousamd. unless otherwise sthed)

sl

Digferred tan nssets an ming difeenyis have o tocognised as ot March 31, 2018 owng m probahding of fsnre vsable iscome hased on husiness plans of she Comgary

Movensent in deferred By assed

A Aperil 1, 2R
{echargedkicredied:
i paodit or doss

i (K

A Mareh 81,2007
{charpedieredined
B Pt of s

o (]

Ad March 31, 2%

Hbser Assely
Particulars

Adhvanees recoverable in cask or in kind
Elnssinrnd, commidured good

A
Tanes recoveralbe
Advance pavment of Fismge Benefi mx
Lsss: Prosvissan fis fringe hemefit sy
Ay i 1EcuE T
Less ' Provision fog moceme s
(L

Total {A+H)

March 31,2018 Nlarch 31, 2817 il 1, 2016
MumscmEreni
ERET ] IIR4ED 15[%20
[ L] R[N o HHT
4 T TBR 14 FELOTE 2e
LITE4 TEFY 53 BB AT
1555640 13534, 6% I26T5.10
- - 113,272 44)
1333640 1355409 03%0,62
e —_— £ 0 Fravisssis Wiimen Abernate  Dheferred tas asser
Tax inety
- - = LR L 0.3%%.02
T 18534 S16 &6 T84 % A6, 09 5708
(BG4} 186 24
EoLw ] Adnaz 1184.00 483358 EEEER S
(A ETRET] RlIE ) I 146 53 ITIEO0%) (B4 SR|
- 14327 - B4 27
LEEERY] [TERE LSS B S ER R 13330, 41
As al
March 31, 2018 Mareh 31, 2007 April 1, 2018 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2007 Aprild 1, 2006
i i el Currtng
- - T 5 [ 049 93 A58 14
- = - 7,074,358 040,05 4,359, 1%
- 2,32028 - -
. - (2,149 941 - z
- - el 1] - = =
21545 56 b e iy 3 45461 41 5 =
(AT T {E5ROY 20} LI5atza)) + o
107541 %.770,0% 3154181 . A .
4T3 9,776, 0 Eral R - = =
A AR S Th05 FENITAY T 074,35 LA 43R0 0%
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5 Equity share capital

i) Authorized equity share capital
Particulars

At Al 1, 2000 | Face valae)

Inceade duning the vear ended March 31, 2007
At March 31, 27T

[ncaease dunng the yoar ended March 31, 2018
Al March 31, 2HE

b Lsswed share capital
Parniculars

At April 1, 2006 | Face valise)

Eeaipe durimg the vear erded Barch 31, 2007
At March 31, 217

Issue ihuring the vear erced March 31,2008
At March 31, 2018

NITT Institute of Finance Banking and Insurance Training Limited
CIN: DRI DTG PLE 14972
Notes 1o the financial statements for the vear ended Viarch 31, 2008

I AN samounes aae in Bsthousandd, unless otherwise stned )

Equiny shares
Mowmber Amaung
10, (M (R TR ]
[ERCILREC [FURETCIR T
00O, i 1110, (0. R
Equry shares
umber Ammivnt
L1112, 200 10125 M)
Tk 1E 2, 5400 1L 125 0
Ll 12 500 1K1 125 00

£y Diaral) of chsg o sharer hedd by e Compaoy ?\fmu al e ('I.m of shares March 31,1018 March 31, 2017 Ageril 1, 2000

Loempany Equire/ Preference Mo of Shares o, of Shares Moo of Shares
Hulding Company MIT Limieed Equaty 5, 162 5iK) B 102500 8157500
Al Details of shareholders hdlding mere than 3% shares in the Company

LN ]
Particalie March 31, 2008 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
. i Mo, wfl shml % ol holding ™ I+ e ol

BT Lamubid B162.500 RO 71 B 02 A 0. 71% 8157504 L
LOTCY Bank Lirmited 1900000 [ & 7o 1, 0 1B 79% [ AT 15 M
Tirtal (L] st el 14863 501 49.81% 1k 05T 580 00467 |

) Terms! righis attached to equity shares

Thee Compaury I e eliss of eoquity shares having a par valoe of Bs 10 per share. Ench sharsholder i eligible for one vide per share held. In the evens of Tiquitarion, the equiny sharcholders are
ehethle to recerve the remmning assets of the Company in propormion 1o selr boddmyg,

Orher Equity
Particulars
Lurplus m statement of prodin aml loss

Details of Other Equity
Farticilirs

Surplus i statement of profit end boss
Balanoe brought forward from pressods year

Al Clustemil Yeni ol atinibmaiabls o duircholdes

Less: Impact on seconnt of gxpecied credit bess (Refer mae 257

Lz, lnypact on sooommt of fur valuation of ESOP [ Refer note 251

Irepns of orhir comprehensive income recognized directly in remined earning
Resmeasuermend of postamployment benelin obligation (et of @0

Asal
March b, 2018 Muarch 31, 2017 April 1, 2006
29,548 T 8,195 B0 (34 Vb 06 )
19,948,746 B.195.80 (3498604
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, X016

B U5 80 134,004 66 (100 363,24

I3,029.69 Axmis T fio 6 AT

- - LB

- - [I5272)
[376.73) 226 =

15,945, T & 9580 (3478660 )
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NIIT Institute of Finance Banking and Insurance Training Limiied
CIMN: URDS03DL200GPLC149721

Motes 1o the financial statemenis for the year ended March 31, 2008
{ AN amounts are in Bs. thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Financial Liahility As at
Trade Payables March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2006
Current
Trade pavahles® 5,194.34 527047 13.304.27
Trade payables to related parties 11,792.17 6,964.52 8.522.68
19.986.51 12,234.99 21.826.95
* Based on information available with the Company, there is no vendor covered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006
Asat
Other Financial Liahilities March 31, 2018 March 31,2007 April 1, 2016
Current
Security deposits payable T15.00 B50.04 £30.00
Other pavables 191978 1,399.87 1,976.42
269478 2,249.87 2,826.42
As at
Provisions Murch 31, 2018 March 3, 2017 April 1, 2016
Current
Provision for employee benefits { Refer note 15.1)
Pravision for gratuity 97526 47085 636,75
Provision for compensated absences* 950.00 TRG.00 I, 158.00
1,925.26 1,256.85 1,794.75

* During the year expense charged | {eredited) on account of compensated absences Rs. 164.00 thousand [Margh 31, 2017 Rs, {372.00) thousand)

As at
Other Liabilities March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 20016
Current
Deterred revenue - 2 B00.00 xrn
Advances lrom customers 5,402,774 T.218.27 4.05
Statutory dues 4.674.40 960,03 1,257.84
10,077.14 10,978,530 147401

-
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NIT Institute of Finance Banking and Insurance Training Limited

CIN: USH03IDL2006PTLC149721

MNotes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Revenue From Operations

Sale of services
Rovalty (Refer note 24)

Other Income

Interest income

Profit from sale of current investment
Provision! other liabilities written back
Other non-operating income

Employee Benefits Expense

Salaries. wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 15.1)

Emplovees share-based payment expenses
Staff welfare expenses

{All amounts are in Rs. thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
134,336.69 | 19,689 86
18,148 81 3527815
152.485.50 154.968.01
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
702592 5,648 949
1.765.99 -
1. 72549 4.271.45
102040 1,198.53
10,910.39 11,118.97
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2007
10,861 .44 864913
422.83 418.79
38951 [30.44
06,73 £9.80

11,740.51 9.294.16




NUT Tostitute of Finance Banking and lnsurance Draining Limited
CIN: USISO3DLI006FLC 149721
Motes to the financial statements for the year caded March 31, 2018
| Al apeounts are in Rs thoosand, unless ofherwise staed|

Emphoyvee Benefits
A Defined contribution plans

Company mikes contnbution towards provident fund and pension scheme 10 the defined contrbimion plans for chigible employess

Company has charged the following eosts in contribution to provident and other funds in the statement of profit and loss

\ car ended
Particulars March 30, 2008 March 31, 2017
Emplosers’ contribution e provedent fund 25060 150 28
Emplovers’ contritatied to employess pension scheme a4.11 56,23
Tatal 319,71 20453

Confribution lewards provident fund and pension scheme to the defined contribition plans includes fallowing cost for key munagerial personnel

Vear ended
Particulars March 31, 20018 March 31, 2017
Emplovers’ contrimiion tm provident fund 17876 11425
Esployers' cantnibition to employees prersion scheme 30.00 30400
Total 208,76 144.25
) Defined benelit plans
I Gratuity fund
Funded As al
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2006
i Change in preseat value of oblgntion:
Present value of obligation as at beginning of the vear tad B8 EALIE ! 3,077.00
Intenzst cost 46,00 6325 22785
Cureent service cost 7512 185 (0 a0 26
Transfer o Holding Company* - = (2,039.19)
Agquisitions eost - (61 00y (R10Hn)
Actuanal {gain) loss on obligations 518.00 (313:.00) (274.00)
Present value of obligation as at the year end 1,30:4.00 664, 58 #10.63
As at
Particubirs March 31, 20018 March 31, 2007 April 1, 2016
i) Change in plan asseis;
Far value of plan assets as a1 the beginning of the year 194,03 17358 106744
Expected return on plon assets - 15,99 B6,90
Contributions 11871 &5.16 7144
[nterest income 1800 .
I'ranster of emplovess 10 Holding Compary™® = = (TPTAZ)
Arquisitions cos] + (61 0y 10.48)
Actuarial (loxs) gain on plan assets (2.0} = {274,000
32874 194,03 175,88

Fair value of plan assets 35 ot the end of the year

Actuzry's estimates of contributions. for the next financial year 15 Rs.975.00 thousand (March 31, 2017 R= 47100 thousand, April 01, 2006 Rs 802,00
thousand )

The Holding Compeny initinied sicps 1o consolidation of role and responsibilitics across people organization. As & result of these activities people were
tnsferred 1o the Holding Company effectively July 01, 2005, pursuant to the armangements estered by the Company with the Holding Conipany
Consequently, the following balances as at June 30, 2013, have besn transfzrmed o the Helding Company.

. Present value of Assels
e ; : Fair value of Plan abligation a5 a1 (obligatian)
i} Amount of asset/ (obligation) recognized i the Balance Sheet Assets as ol the thk i ST e recopnized s

end of the year year Balance Sheel®
s at March 31, 2018 32874 1 304,00 (975.26)
As at March 31, 2007 19403 664 BE (470 85)
A af March 31, 2016 | 7388 Bl 63 (63675}
Az at March 31, 2015 LOGT 44 307700 (2,009 56)
At March 31, 2014 78519 202686 (1,241 67
A at harch 31, 2013 105622 183600 {TT.78)

b Y ear ended
Partbenlars March 31,2008 March 31, 2007
iv) Net gratuity cost recognized in statement of profit and loss:
Currenl servieg oot T5.12 &5 00
Infcrest cost TR0 [ s
Expecied retumi on plan assels - LER.99)
Expense recognized in statemeni of profit aod loss® 103,12 212,26
15.89 1549

Actual retwrn on plan assets
*lacludes Bs 119, 70 thousand { Previnis vea Ra 10500 thopsand ) owards key manaperind ptr:mnn,ul
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Sadrs fo the Nasncial stxiements for the vear ended March 31; 1008
AR mpounts we m B thowaed eless athenwise sand)

Year ended
Particulpr March 31, 2018 March 31, 2007
v} Giratukty cost recognized i ather cemprobsensive mosme:
Wl 1§ gan) § loss secognieed duning the vesr AL o0 {313.005
R on plan azset (greaiert /e than disdon raie .00 -
Expemse ! i | recegaieed im oter prehensiy imcom S20.00 {3130
s w
Particalnrs Mlareh 30, 2008 March 31, 2007 April | 2006
wilA ki used s & ing far grabuity plan;
Ddigcoru pais {per mnaump T 5% T 1.1
L1 o for film X
Fuosee safary mcrease vears and B %% 1 0% &%
thereafter
Expected rote of reum oo plos asgets A.X5% LE 1 LA

Estimates of fitture salary @eresss corsdered o actanal vahation, tskes B8 socoont inflation, ssority, prometion and sther relevam fictors Sich as supply and demnand & i smplayment
markst

i Investnstnl detadb of plen asses:
The pitan aseets are maintained with Lifs Insurance Coiporstos of India Grarumy Scheme The details of Trvestrme memaied by Life Ensurance Corporaton ace sl avaleble wish the Conspeny

andl Bave: not been disclosad.
The expecied return oo plas smets o detsmuned. coresdenng several apphesbls ficiors mesnly the compensation of phin assety held, misessed nsk of asse smoagement, histarical result of the
return an plan assets, ' '

wlily Semsitivity anakyss:
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligasion to changes in the wesphreéd principal assumgions i

m on deﬁmu i oblygnons
in s gy i azmmplisn
March 31. 2068 March 31, 2007 Mmll lﬂ'll March 31, 2017 Maoch 31, 2008 March 31, 2047
Dhgcapand fate 50 hasis poinis 50 basis points 5.1 13N L) L1
Salary growth raly 41} hasis paints 50 hasis points 58 ¥ 1651 (34}
Adtrizion rate i b pounts 1) basis paints (27 ] i} (1E]

The shave sensbiaty anadys s hased unll:hl.n,penmn'rpmnihkhﬂ-ﬁma ﬂmhummm In practice this i uriboely 10 accur and changes n same of the assampion may be
carrelmed When calculatig the sessaiviny of the defined benefit ob 1o g eruarial y the same method (presen vabas of the defined benefs obiganos calcuiated wath the
projecivd unil credi metbd rhtd.d.nfﬂumnmpemdrhbmwbﬂqmuhlmgihﬂmdbmﬁhﬂwmm U D shaer

ix) Thae major ratrgarics of plam sxsets are s Gollowse

March 31, HIlE March 31, 2017

Gooted Toal i Twoted Total in %
Insurence palicy and cash 528 318 T 193 193 ot
1} Risk exposuire
wma@mmmw &5 exposed %@ mumber of ks, the most sgnificant of which are market volatilny, changes in mflaton, changss o1 infferest rales, rising lngevity,

v cheges ens
m&uwmhhmmuwmwﬂhmm-ﬂﬂrmwhhm‘ haped o achieve s whaeh are i line wits the obhigabons
under the smployee benefit plas. Within this Transework, the Geoup's iy machumg ohyctive is b match resets 10 the obligatons by mvesting in securties s maich the benelt pmmeals
ax they fall due
The Growp actively monitors bow the durmion and the expeced yisld of the snesments are matchayg the Fxpected cxsh outfiows anising fom employee bmefit oblgeons. The Growp has wt
changed the processes wsed f mansge s rigks fiom § pericds. Iy e well dive d, gach thai Bailure of any singls Evestas dwoulil @6 heve o naenal imgacd oo the overall
levul afaswats:
xi) Expected muatnvity amalysts of defined henefit obiga
Abave 8 years

I | year In 2 years In 3 years Tn 4 yeais Is § years i wpto § peses.

Marck 10,2018 40 ih 53 i 81 473

Mlaech 31, 2017 pi) I 31 35 7 104
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Mates to the fimancial srotements for the vear eoded March 31, 2018
{AN amount are i Bs ihousand, unbess siherwse stated)

Year fmidml
Orthver Expenses March 31, 2018 March 31, 2007
Equepimem hinng 8% ok [
Reiir (et of recovernses ) i Refer noks 23) AHET 754,33
Bates and tned 419 419
Prwer & fiscl 4233 6125
Cammumicanon Tr2A BAH3
Lepal and prodessaomal fees 236394 201386
Managemen o8 recovery by Hoddmg Compamy 5,639 44 L0231
Travellng and convevancs 1L A%2.00 1, 180 40
Frovigson for doubtful debis . 3Hk1
Frovasam for doubitbul sdvances and deposas 1,700 -
Advances wrtten off - (iR |
Insuranee 4054 B1.82
Repaiis ad mamienance
Flant and Machinery 16,78 533,08
Buildings T I 1762
Oihers 5091 172,72
Secunry and adminisiraton senaces 15.85 41.74
BRank charpes Al eh 132
Marketmy & mdverisang expenses 27T 5350
Expenditure wavards Coaporate Social Responatility (C5E) activates (Refer note Lidiish 40775 T
Mescellaneous expenses 1268 13378

12.548.07 1132408
¥ear ended

PFavment to suditnrs

A awditoe
= At fes
- Resmbursement of expeises (e ludmy tiaxes)

Corporute socisl responsibility expendiore

March 31, XH§

March 31, 2017

BN 1 CH 1)

5740 7 50

BT 4 1207500
Year eoled

Muorch 3t 2018

March 31, 2007

Camdrshutvon o MITT Instituse of Informanon Technobogoy 07,75 Tidn 00
{Refer nate 24)

47,75 Tl
Amayaml reguired b be spend a5 per Secnion 135 of the Act 407 7% T 1D
Aanat spens dunng e year fon proanating educalim activiy: 407,78 T
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Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2018
(Al amoun are in R, thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Yenr emled

17 Income Tax Expense March 31, 2018 March 31,2017

1T {iy Tax expense recognized in statement of profit and loss

Current tax 736355 11.400.31
Detierred tax B 1,56 (4.521.31)
BAOG5.11 6,879.00
Year ended

March 31, 2018

March 31. 2017

17 (i} Tax expense recognized in OC]
Ariging on reimbursement of nel defined benefit Hiability 14327 (36343
143.27 (86.24)
(i) Effective tax reconciliation

This note provides an analysis of the company's income tax expense; show amounts that are recognized directly in in equity and how the tux expense is
affected by non-assessable and non-deductible items. It also explains significant estimates made m relation to the companiy’s tax positions.

fa) Income tax BN RSE
Current tax

Y ear ended

Murch 31, 2008

March 31, 2017

Current tax on operating profits of the vear 617741 1 129630
Adjustment for current tax of prior periods 1. 14614 Find 011
Total current tax expense 7,363.55 11,4tk 31
Deferred tax

[Imcrense) in deferred tax assets (76.53) (4.521.31)
MAT credit utilized TI8.09 B
Total deferred tax expense/ibenefin 641.56 {4.521.31)
Income fax expense RO05.11 687900
(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Indian tax rage;

Year ended

March 31. 2018

March 31, 2017

Profit from continuing operaions belfore meome tax expense 30,134 80 49 834.70
Tax at the Indian tux rate of (FY 2016-17 33.06%) (FY 2017-18 27.55%%) 830280 1647335
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:

Expenditure towards CSE to the extent disallowable 617 251 26
Preferred tax assets crested on temporary differences (745.47) (11;929:02)
Dreferred fax adpstment due to change in tax rates {76:53) 1.977.40
Adjustment for taxes refating to earlier years | 186,04 041
MAT credit whlived during the vear against tix labiliny i 71809 .
Total S005,11 6,879,000
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Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2018
{All amount are in Rs. thousand, unless otherwise stated)

18 Fair value measurements

(i) Fair value hierarchy
To provide indication about the reliability of the inputs in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial
instruments into the three levels preseribed under the accounting standard explained below:

Level I: Level | hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments.
traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The mutual funds are valued using the closing net asset value.

Level 20 The Fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market {for example foreign exchange forward
contracts) is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as
possible on entity-specific estimates. 1f all significant inputs reguired to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument
is included in level 2.

Level 3. 1t one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3.

(i1} Valuation technigue used to determine fair value
Valuation technigue used to value financial instruments include use of market prices.

Financial instruments by category and hierarchy of measurement
As at

March 31, 2018
Carrying value

March 31, 2017
Carrying value

April 1, 2016
Carrving value

Amuortized cost Amaortized cost Amortized cost

Financial assets

Irade receivables [6.335.71 34.862.20 [1.540.51
Laans 95 000,00 40,000,040 -
Cash and bank balances 14.876.95 21.336.05 2951861
Other financial assets 14.477.21 041168 4.333.78
Total financial assets 140,689.87 102,609.93 45,392,910
Financial liabilities

Trade pavables 19.986.51 12.234.99 21,826.95
Security deposit payable 77500 B50.00 B30.00
Other financial Liabilities 1.919.78 [.399 87 1.976.42
Total financial liabilities 22.681.29 14.454.86 24.653.37

As of March 31, 2018, March 31, 2017 and April |, 2016, the fair value of cash and bank balances, trade receivables, other
current financial assets and liabilities, borrowings, trade pavables approximate their carrying amount largely due to the shor
term nature of these instruments.

For other financial assets and liabilities that are measured at amortized cost, the carrying amounts approximate the fair value,
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Notes to the linancial statements for the yvear ended March 31, 2018
(Al amount are in Rs: thousand, unless olherwise stated)

1% Financial risk management

The Company’s principal linancial liabilites. other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other
payibles. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and to provide guarantees
1o support its operations. The Company's principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and
short-term deposits that derive directly from its operations,

The Company 1s exposed o market risk, credit risk and liguidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversecs the
management of these risks. The Company s senior managenient 15 supported by a fnancial risk committee that advises on
financial risks and the appropriste financial risk governance framework for the Company, The financial risk committee
provides assurance w the Company’s senior management that the Company’s financial risk activities are poverned by
appropriate policies and procedures and that fnancial risks are identified. measured and managed in accordance with the
Company’s policies and risk objectives.

(i) Credit risk
Credit risk refers W the risk of defaull on its obligation by the counter party resulting in a financial loss, The maximum
exposure 1o the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting (o Bs, 16.335.71 thousand and
R.5.34.862.20 thousand as of March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 respectively.

The lollowing table gives the movement in allowance for expected credit loss for the vear ended March 31, 2018:

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision — trade receivables

Particulars Amount

Loss allowance on April 1, 2006 571946
Changes in loss allowance 232019
Loss allowance on March 31, 2017 1103965

Changes'in loss allowance -

Loss allowance on March 31, 2018 11.039.65

(i} Liguidity risk
The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generted from
operations. The Company has no sustanding borrowings a= on March 31, 2008,
(i) Maturities of financial liabilities

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of signilicant financial liabilities:

Particulars Less than 1 vear Total

As at March 31, 2018

Trade pavables 19.986.51 1986.51
Oiher financial Habilities 269478 269478
22.681.29 22.081.29

As at March 31,2017

Trade pavables 12.234.99 1223490
Oither financial labilities 224987 2244987
14,484.86 14.4584.86

As at April 1, 2016

Trade pavables 21 826,95 2182695
Other financial liabilities 282642 283642 f
_ 24,653.37 24.653.37,8
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Contingent Liabilities
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:

As at
Particulars March 31, 20018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2006
Service tax JB. 70901 3R.T09.11 IRT0901
Others* fr3(EH) G300, 00 a0

*Towards student claims nol acknowledged as debts,
Management does not foresee any cash outflow in respect of the above based on advise of legal counsel,

21 Earning Per Share Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Protit attributable to equity shareholders (A) 2212969 42.955.70
Weighted av number of equity shares outstand i N
cighted average _ fequity shares outstanding during 10.112.500 10112.500
the year (Nos.) — (B)
Nominal value of equity shares 101,000 1060
Basic and diluted earnings per share (A/B) 2.19 4.25
As there are no dilutive securities at the year end. the basic and diluted earning per share are same.
211 Sepmental Reporting
The Company is engaged in imparting education and training services in the field of finance, banking and insurance sector which is
viewed by the management as a single segment, i, leaming solutions in accordance with Ind AS 108 "Segment Reporting'. the chief
operating decision maker (CODM) evaluates the performance and allocates resources based on the analysis of performance of the
Company as a whole, Its operations are, therefore, considered to constitute a single segment in the context of Ind AS 108 'Segment
Keporting',
The Company operates in a single geography (India) and accordingly, secondary segment reporting is not applicable,
23 Leases

Operating Leases:
The Company has entered ino leases tfor olfice premises, employee accommadations and vehicles which are cancellable at the option of
the Company by giving requisite notice.

Apgregate pavments during the vear under operating leases are as shown hereunder;

Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
In respect of premiscs 175.63 554013
In respect of vehicles 254.22 200.20

429.87 754.33
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14 Related Party Disclosures
A. Related party relationship where control exists
Holding Company - NIIT Limited
Fellow subsidiaries
| Mindchampion Leamning Systems Limited
2 NIT Yuva Jyoti Limited
3 NIT Institute of Provess Excellence Limited
4 NIT LISA Ine, LISA
S NIT Limited, LK
6 MIT Malavsia Sdn, Bhd, Malaysia
T NIT West Africa Limited
g NIT GO Limited, Mauritius
S NIT (Ireland) Limited
1 NIT Learning Selutions (Canada) Limited
I Eagle Intermational Institute Ine, UISA (w.ef January 3. 2008)
12 Eagle Training Spain, 5.L.U (subsidiary of entity at serial no, 1)
13 NIIT Antilles. NV, Netherlands Antilles {liquidated w.e t. November 23, 2007)
14 PTHNAT Indonesia, Indonesia (under hgudation)
15 NIIT China (Shanghai) Limited, Shanghai
16 NUT Wuxi Service Outsourcing Training School, China (Memomndum of Understanding was executed to sell on April 1, 2017)
17 Wuxi NUT Information Technology Consulting Limited, China {agreement 1o sell entered on March 31, 2018)
18 Su Zhou NIT Information Technology Consulting Limited, China (subsidiary of entity al serial no. 17)
19 Changzhou NIT Information Technology Consulting Limited (subsidiary of entity at serial no. 17)
20 Zhangjiagang NIIT Information Services Limited, China
21 Chingdao NIT Information Technology Company Limited, China (closed w.e £, January 31, 2018)
12 Chengmai NIIT Information Technology Company Limited, China
23 Chongging An Dao Education Consulting Limiated. China
24 Chongging NIIT Education Consulting Limited, China
25 NI (NingXia) Education Technology Company Limited, China {incorporated w.e.f May 19, 2017)
26 Dafeng NITT information technology Co., Limited. China {closed w.e.f, October 23, 201 7)
27 Guizhou NUT information technology consulting Co.. Limited, China
28 NIT (Guizhou) Education Technology Co., Lumited, China

B. Other related parties with whom Company has transacted
a. Key managerial personnel:

Porkodi Palani - Manager

Pankaj Mamtani - Chief Financial Officer
. Onthers

I, NITT Universily {a body corporate in which two Non-Executive Directors of the Company are members of its governing body),

2.NIT Institute of Information Technology (a body corporate in which twe Non-Executive Directors of the Company are members of its
governing body).
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. Detail of significant transactions with related parties carried out in ordinary course of business,

Parties in which Key
Key Managerial Managerial
. i / z
Nature of Transactions® Fhnacling 5w pany Personnel Personnel of the Tats)
Company are
interested
o . 52.056.24 - 56, 930130 108,986,774
Bervice received
VLR (77.457.19) - (22.982.40) (100,439 59)
e 15.148.81 - - IB.148.81
Servic dered
SRV (33,278.15) . (1.235.28) (36.513.43)
Management Cost Becovery Sl . ) 08754
- ’ (1.914.34) - (1.914.34)
5] - E 22
2o _ i
| , Q5. 000,00 A - RN R
L0an given -
(0L 000,00 = 5 {40,000.00)
OO S PR RGO - = H R
5.146.27 - - 514627
Interest on loan
Ginbth : {1,544, 800} - - (1.5344.58101)
Contribution towards CSR i ) WL idid
. - {60 AN {760
Remuneration = E‘_‘HI : '?I;_' z B811.74
- [5.824.75) - (5.824.75)
* Excluding taxes
Figures in parenthesis represent previous year figures
I} key management personnel compensation Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31. 2017
Shori-term emplovee benefits 635395 3537549
Post employvment benefit expenses 2R A6 249246
Remuneration paid 6.682.41 5.824.75
Share based payment 12938 -
Total of compensation 6.811.79 5.824.75
E. Details of outstanding balances with related parties As at
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31,2017 April 1, 2016
Receivables
MWITT Limited 4.984.067 372239 315106
NIIT University 80198 6.230.16 T59.00
MNILT Antilles NV = = 136,44
Taotal 5.876.65 9.958.55 4.046.50
Payables
MIT Limited 11.278.61 6.964.32 8.52208
NIIT Lniversity 31550 - -
Kev Managerial Personnel * 32177 144.56 8685
Total 12.113.94 T 008 8,609.53

*® Included in other payables
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Motes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2018

25 First-time adoption of Ind AS
Transition to Ind AS

These are the company s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

The accounting policies set out in note 2 have been applied in preparing the fnancial statements for the vear ended March 31. 2018, the
eomparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 and in the preparation of an opening Ind
AS balance sheet at April 1. 2016 (The company’s date of transition). In preparing its opening Ind AS balance shect, the company has
adjusted the amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act (previous GAAP or Indian GAAP).

An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP 1o Ind AS has affected The company’s financial position, financial performance
and cash Mows is set outin the following tables and notes.

A. Exemptions and exceptions availed
set put below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from previous GAAP 1o
Ind AS.

Al Ind AS optienal exemptions

AL Deemed cost

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and cquipment as recognized
in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS. measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the
date of transition afier making necessary adjustments. This exemption has also been used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38
Intangible Assets and investmen property covered by Ind AS 40 Investment Properties.

Accordingly. The company has elected to measure all of its praperty, plant and equipment and intangible assets at their previous GAAP
carrving value,

A2 Ind AS mandatory exceptions

A.2.1 Estimates
An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with cstimates made for the same date
in-accordance with previous GAAP (afier adjustments 1o reflect any difference in-accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that
these estimales were in error. Ind AS estimates as at Apeil |, 2006 are consistent with the estimates as a1 the same date made in conformity
with previous GAAP, The company made estimates for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not
required under previous GAAP.

= Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model.

B

S| Gurgaon




NHT Institute of Finance Banking and Insurance Training Limited
ClIN: US0903DL2006PLOC149721
Mutes Lo the linancial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2008
{All amount are in Bs. thousand. unless otherwise stated)

25.1 Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, totaf comprehensive income and cash Nows for prior periods. The following tables represent
the reconciliations from previous GAAP w Ind AS,

Reconciliation of equity as at date of transition April 1, 2006

Particulars Notes Previous GAAP* Adjustment Ind AS
ASSETS
Mon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment J1TR - 31789
Cither inmangible assets 1.84%.65 . 1. 849,635
Financial assets

Oither financial assets k6T = 6T
D fermed tax asseis 9,399 62 - 0,399 62
Cither non-curment assets 3271152 - 3271132

Total non-current assels 44,670,105 - A4 670,15
Current assets
Financial assers
rade receivables 1ch 1265267 (1. 11216) 11.540.51
Cash and cash equivalent 251861 . 2451801
Cash balances other than above SHHLO0 . F. 000,00
(ther fimancial assets 3.942.11 - 3.942.11
Other curmen! assets 4. 389,19 - 4.389.19
Total current assets SN502.58 (1,112.16) 49.390.42
TOTAL ASSETS 95,172.73 (1,112.16) G460 5T
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital FOT, 12500} - 1L, 12500
Other equity iz (33.721.78) (1.26:4.88) {34, 986.66)
TOTAL EQUITY 67, 403.22 (1.264.88) 6h,138.34
LIABILITIES
Current labilities
Financial liabilities
Frade payvables 21 826,95 - 21.826.95
Oiher financial liabilities i 267370 152.72 282a.42
Prowisions 1.794. 73 - 1,794,775
Other courrent Habilities 1.474.11 - 1.474.11
TOTAL LIABILITIES 27.764%.51 152,72 2791223
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 25,172.73 (1.012.16) 04, 060,57

*The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conlorm to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this Nofe,
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151 Reconciliation of equity as at March 31, 2017

Particulars Nirles Previous GAAP* Adjustment Ind AS
ASSETS
MNon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 16349 - 163.49
Chher intangible assets 606,72 - 6li6.72
Financial assets
(ther financial assets 20589 - 2E.9]
Deferred tax assets 13.834.69 - 13,834.69
Other non=current assels O 776,05 - 9. 776.05
Total non-current assefs 2641986 - 2641086
Current assels
Financial assets
Trade receivables ich 3724712 (2. 384.92) 34:862 .20
Cash and cash equivalent 1368605 - 13.686.405
Cash hafances other than ahove T.a30.00 - 763000
Ciher financial assets 44,372,797 - 4437277
Other current assets Q04995 - 4044993
Total current assets 112,005,587 (2,384.92) 10962095
TOTAL ASSETS 138,425.73 (2,384,920 136,040,581

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Fquity share capital T 12500 - 107, 125.00
Oicher equity f2h 13,609 K8 {3.474.08) K. 195 %0
TOTAL EQUITY 114,794,858 {5,474.08) 10932080
LIABILITIES

Current liahilities
Financial liahilities

Trade puyvahles 12.234.99 - 12.234.99
Oither financial Habilities i} 960,71 289 16 224987
Provisions 1.256.85 - 1.256.85
Other current labilities {d} 8.178.30 2 R0 00 10.978 .30
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2363085 089,16 26, 720,01
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 13842573 (2,384.92) 136,040,851

*The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ird AS presentation requireménts for the purpose of this Note,




NIIT Institute of Finance Banking and Insurance Training Limited
CIN: USOMIDL2MG6PLO 149721
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2018

{All amount are in Bs, thousand, unless otherwize stated)

153 Reconciliation of totzl comprehensive ineome for the year ended March 31, 2017°

Particulars “utes Previous GAAP Adjustments Ind AS
INCOME

Revenue from operations idy 157.768.01 (2, B0 (1 154 96801
Cirher income 1111897 - 11.118.97
Total income 168,886,985 { 2800040y 166 086,98
EXPENSES

Employee benetits expense {al & (O B.R44.72 44 44 9264 14
Professional ewnsourced faculty 16,700.12 - 16, 70012
Coatrse execulion expenses 7745719 - TTA5ST19
Depreciation and amortization expense 147583 - 1. 475.83
Oither expenses (el 1005232 1.27276 11,524 98
Total expenses 114,530.08 1,722.20 116,252,248
Profit before tax 54.350.90 {4.522.20) 4983470
Tax expense:

Current tax P14 3] - P A0 31
Deferred tax (b {4.435.07) (RG24} (4.521.31)
Profit for the vear 4739166 i4.435.96) 42.955.70

Other comprehensive income
frems that will vt be veclussified to profin or loss

Femeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations (i) & ieh LR F13.00 31300
Income tax {expense / income relating to these items (b .00 (B 24) (86.24)
Cither comprehensive income for the year, net of tax AL 226.76 10676
Total comprehensive income for the vear 47.391.66 {42009, 211 4318246

* The previoas GAAP figures have been reclassified to confirm to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose ol this Note




NIIT Institute of Finance Banking and Insurance Training Limited

CIN: USO903DL2006 PLC 149721

Motes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2008

(Al amount are in Bs. thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Note: First-time adoption of Indian AS (cont.)
B: Reconciliation between previons GAAP and Ind AS (cont.)

Reconciliation of total equity as at March 31, 2017 and April 1, 2016

Particulars Notes March 31, 2017 April 1, 20116
Total equity {sharcholder's funds) as per previous GAAP 114,794,858 67.403.22
Adpustments:

Expense due to expected credit loss () 2.384.92 1L112.16
Remeasurement of deferred revenue (d) 2RO -
Emplovees stock option expense (i 2EU. 16 F52.72
Total adjustments S 4T4.08 1.264.88
Total equity as per Ind AS 109 320,80 66, 138.34
Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the vear ended March 31, 2017

Particulars Notes March 31,2017

Profit after tax as per previous GAAP 47. 39166

Adjustments:

Remeasurement of employee benefit obligation {net of tax) 1] 226.76

Expense due o expected credit loss {ch 1.272.76

Revenue deferred due to Ind AS {d) 280004

Emplovees stock option expense i 13644

Total adjustments 443596

Profit after tax as per Ind AS 42.955.70

Chther comprehensive income (el (226.74)

Profit after tax as per Ind AS 4318246

Impact of Ind AS adoption on the statements of cash fMows for the vear ended March 31, 2017

Particulars Previous GAAP Ind AS Adjustment
Metcash flow from operating activitics 2516167 25.161.67 -

Met cash flow from investing activities
Met cash tlow from financing activities

(35.994.23)

(35.994.23)

MNet (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as at April 1, 2006

Cash and cash equivalents as at March 31, 2007

(10,832.56) (10,832.56) -
14.518.61 14,518.61 -
13,686.05 13.686.05 =




NIIT Institute of Finance Banking and Insurance Training Limited
CIN: US003DL2006PLOC14972]
Motes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2008

215.6 Note: First-time adoption of Indian AS (Cont.)
C: Notes to first-time adoption:

a) Remeasurements of post-employment benefit abligations

Under Ind AS. remeasurements i.e, actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the net interest
expense on the net defined benefit liability are recognized in other comprehensive income instead of profit or loss. Under the previous
GAAP, these remeasurements were forming part of the profit or lass for the year, As a result of this change, the profit for the vear ended
March 31, 2017 has been decrensed by Rs.313.00 thousand and the same has been recognized in other comprehensive income, There is no
impact on the ol equity asat March 31, 2017,

b) Deferred tax

Under the previous GAAP, deferred tax accounting was done using the income statement approach, which focised on differences between
taxable profits and accounting profits for the period,

Ind A5 12 requires entities o account for defermed tixes vsing balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporury difference between the
carrving amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and it's tax base.

In additicn. various transitional adjustments lead to temporary differences. Deferred tax adjustments are recognized in correlation o the
underfying transaction either in retained earnings ora separate component of equity.

¢} Provision recognized on trade receivables as per expected credit loss

Under the previous GAAP. provisions for impairment of receivables consisted only of specific amount of incurred losses, As per Ind AS
109, impairment allowances to be determined as per expected credit loss model (ECL). Retained eamings as at March 31, 2007 and April 1,
2016 have been adjusted consequent to the above.

i) Deferred revenue

Uinearned revenue included in other current liabilitics represents amount billed in excess of the value of worth performed in accordance with
the terms of the contracts with costemers, Afier adopting Ind AS, amount of deferred revenue as on March 31, 20017 was revalued. Retained
earnings as at March 31, 2017 have been adjusted consequent to the above,

e) ODther comprehensive income

Linder Ind A5, all items of income and expense recognized in a period should be included in profit and loss for the period. unless a standard
requires or permits otherwise. llems of income and expense that are not recognized in profit and loss but are shown in the statement of profit
and loss as ‘other comprehensive income! includes remeasurement of defined benefit plans, The concept of other comprehensive income did
not exist under previous GAAP.

1) Share based pavments

Under the previous GAAP, the cost of equity sentled employee share-based plan was recognized using intrinsic value method. Under Ind AS,
the cost of equity settled share-based plan is recognized based on fair value of the options as at grant date. Consequently. profit before tax
for the vear ended March 31, 2017 has decreased by Rs, 289,16 thousand and Rs 152,72 thousand the impact on the total equity as at April
1. 2016, The Holding Company grants shares to the employees of the Group Company.

o) Retained earnings

Retained earnings as at March 31, 2017 and April 1. 2016 has been adjusted consequent to the above Ind AS iransition adjstments,
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NIT Institute of Finance Banking and Insurance Training Limited
CIN: UB0MSDL200GPLOC149721
Motes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2018

The comparative linancial imformation of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017 and the transition date opening balance sheet as a
April 1. 20H6 included in these Ind AS financial statements, are hased on the previously issued financial statements prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepied in India and were audited by a firm other than S.K. Batliboi & Associates LLP, as adjusted for
the differences in the accounting principles adepted by the Company on transition o the Ind AS,

The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors on May 11, 2018,

For 5.R. Batliboi & a\gsntiam LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountanis NIT fnstitute of Finance Banking and Insurance Training Limited
ICAl Firm Registrag o.t D49 WE 300004
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Institule of Finsnce, Banking sand Insuranee

PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

12" Annual General Meeting — July 11, 2018

Name of the Member{s): B
Registered Address:

Email:

DP ID No..

Folio No. / Client 1D No.;

|/We, being the member{s) of .......... Shares of the above named Company, hereby
appoint;

1) Name:
B e B s L e e
E-mvail 302 s nsisimnsiie o O TETVEEERETE L s iivessimiassie A ks s NS5 F R oo B A

or failing him/her

2) Name:
Address:
E TR s e o siasan T TR D o v s oo s P o B e v s s

or failing him/her

3} Name:
N e e B e T T R L

E-rmail 45 s i snvsmvermmsiemsrins ST LT oo ssummisssisssst cobrapessasnyun
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 12"
Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Wednesday, July 11, 2018 at 9.20
A.M. IST. at the Registered Office of the Company at 8, Balaji Estate, First Floor, Guru Ravi

Das Marg, Kalkaji, New Delhi — 110019 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such
resolutions as are indicated below:



ithi

Institute of Finonce, Banking and Insorance

Resolution
Number.

Resolution

No. of
Shares

Vote {Optional see Note 3}

For

Against

Ordinary Bu

siness

1

Adoption of the Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2018,
together with the reports of the Auditors
and Directors thereon.

Appoint a Director in place of Mr. Vijay K
Thadani (DIN:00D42527), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment.

Appoint a Director in place of Mr. P
Rajendran (DIN:D0042531), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment,

Appointment of Mr. Manish Srivastava, as
Manager of the Company

Signed this ..........ccccorve day of ... 2018

Signature of Member ..o

Affix
Revenue
Stamp not
less than
Rel

Signature of Proxy holder(s] ...

Motes:

This form of proxy, in order to be effective; should be duly stamped, completed, signed and
deposited at the registered office of the Company, elther is person or through post, not later
than 48 hours before the commencement of the Annual General Meeting.

A proxy need not be a member of the Company, A person can act as proxy on behalf of
members not exceeding fifty and holding In the aggregate not more than 10% of the total
share capital of the company carrying voting rights. A member haolding more than 10% of the
total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appeint-a single person as
proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for-any other person or sharehelder.

it is optional to indicate your preference. If you leave the for, against or abstain columin blank
against any or all resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she may
deem appropriate.

Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he
50 wishes.

For the resolution and notes, please refer Notice of the Annual General Meeting.
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ATTENDANCE SLIP
12" Annual General Meeting — July 11, 2018

e 0 O O

Folio No. / Client ID No. e I e b b g

No. of Shares held : 1-[_-] 1 | | |

| certify that | am a member/proxy for the member of the Company.

| hereby record my presence at the 12" Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
Wednesday, July 11, 2018 at 9.20 A.M. I5T, at the Registered Office of the Company at 8,
Balaji Estate, First Floor, Guru Ravi Das Marg, Kalkaji, New Delhi - 110019

Name of the Member

Name of the Proxy

Signature

MNote: Please complete this Attendance Slip and hand it over at the meeting venue.



